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International Entertainment Corporation

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2022 (the “Year").

During the Year, the principal activities of the Group are gaming operation
(leasing of investment properties equipped with entertainment equipment
to the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation ("“PAGCOR’) and
participation in the gaming operation), hotel operations, and live poker
events operations.

Impacted by the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic for more than
two years since the outbreak, we saw a recovery in the Group’s operations
in the fourth quarter of the financial year as community quarantine
requirements were eased and border was reopened to international arrivals
in the third quarter of the financial year. Supported by low COVID-19 cases
and roll out of vaccination programme, we are pleased to see measures
being undertaken to promote the tourism of the Philippines. Capacity
restriction on gaming sector has been removed and fully vaccinated
foreigners and returning Filipinos are no longer required to undergo
mandatory quarantine upon arrival. We are hopeful that the gaming and
tourism industry can gradually recover and normalize in the short to
medium term if there are no disruptions such as high inflation, surge in
COVID-19 cases and war.

The Group's revenue for the Year was approximately HK$85.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 31.7%, as compared with
approximately HK$64.9 million in the year ended 30 June 2021 (the
“Previous Year’). The Group reported a gross profit of approximately
HK$22.0 million for the year under review, representing an increase of
approximately 388.9%, as compared with approximately HK$4.5 million in
the Previous Year. These improvements were mainly due to the increase in
revenue from the group’s gaming operation as the performance started to
pick up in the fourth quarter of the financial year following the easing of
most COVID-19 control measures. Capacity restriction for casinos in Manila
was dropped starting March 2022. Revenue in the gaming segment started
to recover since then.
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In August 2021, in order for Marina Square Properties, Inc. (“MSPI") to
participate and accumulate relevant experience in gaming operations,
MSPI entered into a cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation
Agreement’) with PAGCOR and jointly established a management
committee (the “Management Committee”) to commence participation
in casino operations at the casino located in the Group's hotel premises.

As always, the Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and will continue to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems to comply with the statutory
and regulatory requirements to maximise the values of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders").

The Group will continue to focus on its existing business operations and
investments in the Philippines riding on business environment to strive for
exploring potential business opportunities.

Looking forward, we strive to explore more opportunities of high potential
to create synergies among businesses and support the long-term growth
of the Group.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincerest
gratitude to our directors of the Company, the management team and the
employees of the Group for their relentless commitment, efforts and
creative ideas during the year. | would also like to take this opportunity to
thank our Shareholders, customers and business partners for their
continued support.

Ho Wong Meng
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 September 2022
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue for the Year was approximately HK$85.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 31.7%, as compared with
approximately HK$64.9 million in the Previous Year. The Group reported a
gross profit of approximately HK$22.0 million for the Year under review,
representing an increase of approximately 388.9%, as compared with
approximately HK$4.5 million in the Previous Year. Gross profit margin for
the Year was approximately 25.7%, representing an increase of
approximately 267.1%, as compared to gross profit margin of
approximately 7.0% for the Previous Year. These improvements were
mainly due to the increase in revenue from the Group’s gaming operation
(leasing of investment properties equipped with entertainment equipment
to PAGCOR and participation in the gaming operation) as the performance
started to pick up in the fourth quarter of the financial year following the
easing of most COVID-19 control measures and reopening of the
Philippines’ international borders in the third quarter of the financial year.

Other income of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$4.6 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 68.9%, as compared with
approximately HK$14.8 million for the Previous Year. This was because
there were more short term rental income in the Previous Year.

Other losses of the Group mainly represented the net foreign exchange
gain or loss. The Group recorded a net foreign exchange loss of
approximately HK$18.0 million for the Year, while a net foreign exchange
gain of approximately HK$0.4 million was recorded in the Previous Year.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$40.9 million on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the Year,
while a loss on change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$46.5 million was recognised for the
Previous Year.

The Group also recorded a gain of approximately HK$3.2 million on change
in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the
Year, representing a decrease of approximately 37.3%, as compared with a
gain of approximately HK$5.1 million in the Previous Year.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties has been arrived at
based on a valuation carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent professional valuer not
connected to the Group. The fair value loss for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$120.7 million, as compared to approximately HK$111.9
million for the Previous Year. Economic uncertainty might continue to have
an impact on the future cash flow from the Group’s gaming operation
which affected the valuation of the properties.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

There were no impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and
impairment loss of right-of-use assets recorded in the Year, compared to
approximately HK$24.8 million (approximately HK$2.3 million for gaming
operation and approximately HK$22.5 million for hotel operation) and
HK$3.7 million (approximately HK$0.9 million for gaming operation and
approximately HK$2.8 million for hotel operation) respectively in the
Previous Year. Hotel operation started to recover since the lifting of the
COVID-19 restrictions.

Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses
of the Group decreased by approximately 1.9% to approximately HK$77.3
million for the Year from approximately HK$78.8 million in the Previous
Year. Included in these expenses for the Year, approximately 40.9% and
14.2% were the staff costs and the utilities expenses respectively. The staff
costs for the Year was approximately HK$31.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 1.0%, as compared with approximately HK$31.3
million in the Previous Year. The utilities expenses for the Year was
approximately HK$11.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
10.0%, as compared with approximately HK$10.0 million in the Previous
Year. Electricity cost of the Group'’s operations in the Philippines increased
in the fourth quarter of the financial year due to the surge in international
coal prices.

Finance costs of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$29.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 0.7% as compared with
approximately HK$29.3 million in the Previous Year. The finance costs
included the interest on promissory notes, the bank borrowings, lease
liabilities and convertible bond.

The Group recorded income tax credit of approximately HK$6.8 million for
the Year, while income tax credit of approximately HK$30.8 million was
recognised in the Previous Year. This was because corporate income tax
rate applicable for our business in the Philippines was lowered from 30% to
25% in the Previous Year which resulted in a significant tax credit
recognised to reflect the change.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$256.4 million for the Year
as compared with a loss of approximately HK$242.0 million for the Previous
Year.

Loss per share for the Year amounted to approximately 18.73 HK cents, as
compared with loss per share of approximately 17.68 HK cents for the
Previous Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBNWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are gaming operation (leasing of
investment properties equipped with entertainment equipment to
PAGCOR and participation in the gaming operation), hotel operation and
live events.

1.

08

Gaming operation

The revenue derived from the gaming operation is based on an
agreed percentage of net gaming revenue generated from the local
gaming area operated by PAGCOR as lessee of the Group's premises
or a fixed rental amount, whichever is higher.

In August 2021, in order for the Group to participate and accumulate
relevant experience in gaming operations, MSPI, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in the Philippines entered
into a Cooperation Agreement with PAGCOR and jointly established
a Management Committee for casino operations at the casino
located in the Group's hotel premises. Since the establishment of the
Management Committee, the representatives of MSPI, through the
Management Committee, have been participating in the casino
operations. The representatives of MSPI has attended the
Management Committee monthly meetings to transact the business
of the casino, including but not limited to, (i) review the operational
performance and understand the fluctuation of operational
performance; (i) plan the business framework, flow and model for
the operation and development; (iii) review and approve on the
budget planning, forecasting and variance analysis; (iv) review and
approve expenditures in excess of pre-approved budgets; (v) prepare
marketing and promotion proposal and timetable; (vi) review and
monitor capital injection commitment; and (vii) ensure compliance
to relevant laws, rules and regulations issued or promulgated by
pertinent authorities and requiring all department heads of casino to
report any non-compliance issue or potential non-compliance issue
occur (collectively, the “Management Functions”). Apart from the
Management Functions, MSPI also undertakes certain functions in
connection with the casino operation such as provision of food and
beverages service and marketing and promotion function of the
casino. In view of MSPI's participation in the casino operation, the
segment has been presented as “Gaming Operation” in the Year (the
Previous Year: “Leasing”) of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

1.

Gaming operation (Continued)

The revenue derived from the gaming operation for the Year was
approximately HK$52.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 72.9%, as compared with approximately HK$30.6
million in the Previous Year. Most anti-pandemic measures such as
border restriction and different levels of community quarantine
requirements have been lifted by the government of the Philippines
in the third quarter of the financial year. Capacity restriction for
casinos in Manila was dropped starting March 2022. Revenue in the
segment started to recover since then. It contributed approximately
61.8% of the Group's revenue during the Year under review while it
contributed approximately 47.2% of the Group’s revenue in the
Previous Year.

At 30 June 2022 and 2021, there are tax dispute cases between MSPI,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Bureau of
Internal Revenue (“BIR”") in the Philippines. Please refer to Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report for more
details and estimated contingent liabilities.

Hotel operation

The revenue derived from the hotel operations mainly includes
room revenue, revenue from food and beverages and other hotel
service income. The hotel of the Group is located in Manila City
which is a tourist spot with churches and historical sites as well as
various night spots catered for tourists and is one of the major tourist
destinations in the Philippines.

The revenue derived from the hotel operations for the Year was
approximately HK$32.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 5.0%, as compared with approximately HK$34.3
million in the Previous Year. It would take time for the tourism
industry in the Philippines to recover as the COVID-19 pandemic
brought travel and tourism to a standstill around the world for two
years.

During the Year under review, included in the revenue derived from
the hotel operations, approximately 74.5% of the revenue was
contributed by room revenue while it was approximately 88.6% in
the Previous Year. The room revenue for the Year was approximately
HK$24.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 20.1%, as
compared with approximately HK$30.4 million in the Previous Year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR T

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
3. Liveevents

The revenue represented income from sponsorship and entrance fee
of live poker events. However, there was no live poker event during
the Year due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Countries across the globe are taking unprecedented measures to combat
the spread of COVID-19 pandemic since its initial outbreak back in January
of 2020. Travel restriction, travellers quarantine and even “lock down”
policies have been impacting the global economy seriously. Different
degrees of community quarantine measures were imposed by the
Philippines government and visitation to the Philippines decreased
drastically since the outbreak.

After two years into the COVID-19 pandemic, the gaming industry and
tourism industry in the Philippines have shown signs of recovery in the first
half of 2022. The improved performance follows the easing of most
COVID-19 pandemic restrictions across the Philippines, with borders
reopened to international tourists in February 2022 and community
quarantine requirements eased in March 2022. Low COVID-19 cases and
measures to boost vaccination rate further promoted the industries
recovery. Gaming and tourism frontliners, such as employees of hotels and
guests have been prioritized for vaccination in the Philippines. Market
expected the performance can reach the pre-pandemic level in the short
to medium term. However, challenges such as inflation, progress of
vaccination rollouts globally, measures undertaken by other countries to
promote tourism recovery, and geopolitics may have an impact on the
sector.

The Group remain cautiously optimistic about the recovery of the tourism
and gaming industry in the Philippines. The Group will continue to focus
on its existing business operations and investments in the Philippines
riding on business environment to strive for exploring potential business
opportunities.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE OUTLOOK (Continued)

MSPI had submitted an application to PAGCOR for a provisional license (the
“Provisional License”) in order to expand and upgrade the current hotel
premises, facilities and services by the establishment and operation of a
casino and the development of an integrated resort in the Philippines. As
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18 September
2020, MSPI received the draft provisional license agreement (the
"Provisional License Agreement’) in relation to the grant of Provisional
License from PAGCOR on 18 September 2020. As at the date of this annual
report, (i) MSPI and PAGCOR are still negotiating the terms of the draft
Provisional License Agreement, including the development scale and
timeline of the Integrated Resort; and (i) the Group has not yet identified
suitable land to expand the hotel premises, hence the Provisional License
Agreement has yet been executed.

In August 2021, in order for MSPI to participate and accumulate relevant
experience in gaming operations, MSPI entered into the Cooperation
Agreement with PAGCOR and jointly established the Management
Committee to commence participation in casino operations at the casino
located in the Group's hotel premises.

Regarding for the future development of an integrated resort, the Board
will consider different financing method and change of capital structure (as
the case may be) in order to expand our business and maintain the liquidity
of the Group.

EEENWR T

B (&)

MSPI 8] PAGCOR i 22 B B b2 PR ([ R BFHEHR |) EA 5

LA BRI &ﬁ}%i&@%ﬁ%iﬁﬁ%‘ﬂw\ﬂﬁx

RiERREREHEDE  FHEEREE o L0

$®Taﬁ;ﬁﬁ_7§_2¢ﬂﬂﬂ\aaﬁﬂiﬁﬂa§z
* MSPIR ZZ ZZF 7L A +/\ A E & PAGCOR

ﬁﬁ%%ﬂjEnuﬁfﬁé‘ﬁmﬁ’]ﬁuﬂETHE‘E/\\T;??JQ%ET%%LK(TEH%}

MR ) o IMAFIRHEH 0 ()MSPIEE PAGCORT
EEEBRRE R EA 1%,? a% FEEBEN
ERPAELERRE RAERH R EDHE

BREENENE] r‘JiﬁziﬁE BRI 1t 1) 7K 25 37 G R hE R
Tﬁaﬁ °

RZEBE=_—FNA %EMSP@E@T@#Z%L&%
TEFERAARES »+ MSPI B PAGCORET M & 1E R M A
RYEBRES  URAEBHEYENRS %%—Eﬁ
[REEIGEIE -

IEEERENE-—SHEMS EFERKEE
TRMBET EZRBEEARRE(RBRME) A
BABFINRGREBAEENREDESKF -

Annual Report %5 2021/22 11



B IR AR R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$97.0 million (as at 30 June 2021: HK$223.0 million).
Current assets amounted to approximately HK$564.6 million (as at 30 June
2021: HK$659.2 million), of which approximately HK$512.1 million (as at
30 June 2021:
approximately HK$13.0 million (as at 30 June 2021: HK$4.3 million) was
trade receivables, approximately HK$29.0 million (as at 30 June 2021:
HK$30.4 million) was other receivables, deposits and prepayments,
approximately HKS$1.2 million (as at 30 June 2021: HKS$1.4 million) was

HKS$564.9 million) was bank balances and cash,

inventories, approximately HK$8.2 million (as at 30 June 2021: HK$52.6
million) was financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
approximately HKS$0.2 million (as at 30 June 2021: HK$2.2 million) was
contract assets, and approximately HK$0.9 million (as at 30 June 2021:
HKS$3.3 million) was amounts due from associates.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$467.6 million (as at 30 June 2021: HKS$436.2 million), of
which approximately HK$2.1 million (as at 30 June 2021: HK$1.8 million)
was trade payables, approximately HK$30.3 million (as at 30 June 2021:
HK$29.9 million) was other payables and accrued charges, approximately
HKS$0.2 million (as at 30 June 2021: HK$0.02 million) was contract liabilities,
approximately HK$31.2 million (as at 30 June 2021: HK$19.9 million) was
bank borrowings, approximately HK$400.3 million (as at 30 June 2021:
HK$382.2 million) was promissory notes and approximately HK$3.5 million
(as at 30 June 2021: HKS$2.5 million) was lease liabilities.

The bank balances and cash of the Group as at 30 June 2022 was mainly
denominated in Philippine Peso (‘Peso”), Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$") and
United States Dollars ("USD").
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Net cash used in operating activities of the Group for the Year under review
was approximately HK$0.7 million, while net cash used in operating
activities of the Group was approximately HK$9.8 million for the Previous
Year. Net assets attributable to the owners of the Company as at 30 June
2022 amounted to approximately HK$1,195.9 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 24.9%, as compared with approximately
HKS$1,591.6 million as at 30 June 2021.

On 27 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent (the “Placing Agreement”). The completion of the placing
took place on 10 August 2017. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement, an aggregate of 190,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$1.00 each as placing shares were successfully placed by
the placing agent at the placing price of HK$1.90 per placing share. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 July
2017 and 10 August 2017. The net proceeds from the placing, after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses payable by
the Company, were approximately HK$358.50 million. The net proceeds
from the placing were intended to be used as to (i) approximately
HKS$150.0 million for the renovation of a hotel of the Group in Manila City
(the "Hotel"); (ii) approximately HK$100.0 million for the development of
the parcels of land adjacent to the Hotel (the “New Hotel Land"), including
but not limited to the construction of a carpark and amenities of the Hotel,
and the provision of a facility to an independent third party for the
acquisition of the New Hotel Land; (iii) approximately HK$70.0 million for
the potential acquisition of, including but not limited to, lands in the
Philippines for the construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s); and (iv) the
remaining proceeds for the general working capital of the Group.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND neER. MBEERNREXRGE®)
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Set forth below is a summary of the utilisation of the net proceeds as at TSUE%LB/\_ S - —FXNA=ZT BB RIAEFE

30 June 2022: HEN RIS
Expected
timeline for
Amount of Balance of the application of
the net proceeds  the net proceeds the balance of
Intended use of utilised as at unutilisedasat  the net proceeds
the net proceeds 30 June 2022 30 June 2022 (Note 4)

R-ZBZZ% R-ZBZZ% ERfBHE
~B=tH ~A=t1H BHEAERN
FE5E CEBRARSHE KBARSHE BHBEX

FERTRR BEEH R (GET)
(HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million)
(BEAT) (BEAT) (BEBAT)
Renovation of the Hotel (Note 1) BIEEE (K1) 1500 1233 267 On or before
30 June 2023
N —T::E
~NAZTE
EwA|

Development of the New Hotel Land, BEAE R (BRERER 1000 526 474 On or before
including but not limited to the construction B E ) {EE 15 R EF:R 1) 30 June 2023
of a carpark and amenities of the Hotel, R AKEEE R RE L R -=fF
and the provision of a facility to an F=RRURE (H22) ~NAZTH
independent third party for the acquisition B
of the New Hotel Land (Note 2)

Potential acquisition AR (B REENRR) FEEER 700 - 700 On or before
(the "Potential Acquisition”) of, TR REE R/ ohiR4sE 30 June 2023
including but not limited to, lands in the ([TTREM B ) (f23) N_B-=%
Philippines for the construction of hotel(s) ~A=TH
and/or casino(s) (Note 3) B

General working capital of the Group AEERN-REBES 385 385 -

Total it 3585 2144 1441
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Notes:

1. The renovation of the Hotel was almost completed. Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, the remaining renovation work of the Hotel was slow during the year
ended 30 June 2022, and expected to be completed in the financial year ending
30 June 2023.

2. The HK$52.6 million utilised comprised HK$51.9 million loan to Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc. for the acquisition of the New Hotel Land and HK$0.7
million for the payment of the design and consultancy services fees for the
development of the New Hotel Land. Priority will be given to the development of
the new lands to be acquired in the Potential Acquisition before the development
of the New Hotel Land. Due to the continuous outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group had been more prudent in applying the proceeds during
the Year. The expected timeline for application of the balance of the proceeds is
30 June 2023. It is expected that in addition to the balance of the net proceeds of
approximately HK$47.4 million allocated, further financial resources are required
for the development of the New Hotel Land. The time for commencement of the
development of the New Hotel Land and use of the remaining net proceeds
allocated for the development of the New Hotel Land will depend on the internal
and external financial resources available to the Group and commencement of the
development of the new lands to be acquired.

3. Due to the continuous outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had been
more prudent in applying the proceeds for acquisition and there was no progress
for the Potential Acquisition during the Year. The expected timeline for the
application of the balance of the net proceeds is 30 June 2023.

4. The expected timeline for the application of the balance of the net proceeds is
based on the management’s best estimation barring unforeseen circumstances,
and would be subject to change based on the future development of market
conditions. The corporate and commercial environment has changed significantly
due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The uncertain economic and market conditions
make some of the Group's operations more challenging. The Group will continue
to assess the plans for application of the balance of the net proceeds, and may
revise or amend such plans where necessary, to cope with the changing market
conditions and strive for better business performance for the Group. Should there
be any material change in the intended use of the balance of the net proceeds,
the Company will make appropriate announcement in due course.

The gearing ratio, measured in terms of the carrying values of total
borrowings divided by total assets, was approximately 25.3% (as at 30 June
2021:20.8%).

The Group financed its operations including but not limited to internally
generated cash flows and the issuance of promissory notes.
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BEEWE D

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Owing to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since the early of 2020,
countries across the world are taking unprecedented measures to combat
the spread of the virus. Travel restriction, travellers quarantine and even
“lock down” policies have been impacting the global economy seriously.
Visitation to the Philippines decreased drastically since the outbreak.
Different degrees of community quarantine measures were imposed by
the Philippines government during the Year under review. The Group’s
hotel and the casino in the hotel may be subject to temporary mandated
closures to comply with those anti-pandemic measures. All these may pose
a negative impact on the Group's revenue from its hotel and gaming
operations in the Philippines.

It is uncertain when this will end. The Group will closely monitor the
current market situation and make corresponding measures such as cost
control policy in order to sustain our business.

The Group continues to face significant risks and uncertainties from the
economic growth and the competition in the market that the Group
operates, and changes in economic, political and social conditions and
changes in the relevant laws and regulations in the places that the Group
operates.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk as the Group's assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso and EURO and the
Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS$, USD and Peso while
the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in HKS and Peso.

In addition, uncertainties exist with regard to the tax disputes between
certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the Philippines and the
BIR in the Philippines.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year
(for the Previous Year: nil).

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as otherwise mentioned in this annual report, during the year ended
30 June 2022, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations of the places in which the Group operates that has a
significant impact on the business operations of the Group.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the bank loans are secured by the
Group's investment properties amounted to approximately HK$993 million
and HKS$1,231 million respectively.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

On 22 June 2020, MSPI submitted an application to PAGCOR for the
Provisional License from PAGCOR in relation to the establishment and
operation of a casino in the City of Manila, Philippines. On 4 November
2020, PAGCOR in principle agreed to grant the Provisional License to MSPI
subject to the parties entering into the Provisional License Agreement.
MSPI is in the course of reviewing the terms of the Provisional License
Agreement.

The operation of gambling casinos in the Philippines is a regulated activity,
and every gambling casino in the Philippines has to be licensed by
PAGCOR and obtain a valid license from PAGCOR for the operation of the
gambling activities. Pursuant to the draft Provisional License Agreement,
the Provisional License to be granted to MSPI shall take effect on the date
of the Provisional License Agreement and shall be valid until the issuance
of the regular casino gaming license (the “Regular Casino Gaming
License”) by PAGCOR upon completion of the development of the
integrated resort and upon approval by PAGCOR of the report detailing the
actual total project cost to ensure MSPI's compliance with the approved
project cost based on the approved plan. The Provisional License and the
Regular Casino Gaming License shall have an aggregate term of fifteen (15)
years from the issue date of the Provisional License or until 11 July 2033,
whichever comes first. The Regular Casino Gaming License may be
renewed subject to the same terms and conditions pursuant to the
Provisional License Agreement. According to the draft Provisional License
Agreement, MSPI can only commence the operation of gambling activities
upon the receipt of the notice of commencement after PAGCOR is satisfied
that the casino in the integrated resort is fully compliant with the approved
plans and the pre-conditions provided by PAGCOR, and in any event, the
notice of commencement would not be issued by PAGCOR earlier than
28 February 2022. In order for MSPI to participate and accumulate relevant
experience in gaming operations prior to issue of the notice of
commencement by PAGCOR, PAGCOR and MSPI entered into the
Cooperation Agreement. The entering into of the Provisional License
Agreement and the execution of the Cooperation Agreement are not
interconditional upon each other.

EEENWR T

REEEEK

F_gi_ﬁ/\ﬂ '1’5&_’2: $/_\)EJ E"f’
B R77 8 E A9 B 49930000008 T &
1,231,000,000;‘%7‘52$;%?ﬁiﬁ%%?ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ 0

EXRBRNEREXRE

MRZBE-_FF,NA=+=H  MSPI[A] PAGCORIE
A ﬁPN{OR$muﬁ¢WW’iN§ﬁﬁmn BE
EEENTEY R EEHY - R = EEE =

AmA - M&m%%tﬁ%ﬂmmﬁmﬁﬁ%
BB BTN LRI RSB RIREE - A AE

B o MSPI IE 225 B b B 1 R 195 3 - 1R 3K

FRERGEEBIYRETE  UNIEREZM
B B I% A PAGCOR 25 f2 K B PAGCORE X B R h
BIAEBHEIEEY - RIBGERIERBHEERAE
[EIMSPIFE ) 2 B B b BR PR B B hE AR 1p B ERAE 2
B EE TR ERSEERIE & PAGCORIZ &R
& EFRFFITE B B LR - R MSPHZ BR
ﬁ%ﬁﬂ ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁaﬁ$&mmqm%ﬁmt
ESEEER(EXNBESEEERB]) AL - B
&2 AR &Et%%% R HARR & £ A FRF iE R
HHBEHSETARtTR)EIEE-T==

tﬂ+—mﬂ%?i%%ﬁ)mt%%% 2 hé
B AR R R R R 17 i TE AR A ISR RS E 4B -
BRI R IR E R - PAGCORTEMGZEER
&N EES T2/ 1% ERTEI & PAGCOR IR 2 STk
&5 1 () MSP1 2% S P R 3B A1 + MSPI 5 A] R BE
BEEEE  MAEEMIBERT » PAGCORETE R
RZEZ—F-_A-+\BELFARBA - %@
MSPI ] £ PAGCOR 2% (1 FI R B AN BT 2 B L & 18

ZFEARIASER - PAGCOR EE MSPI 5] 3 A 1% o é
YRR R IR R R LAEH R IEE BIEM -

Annual Report %5 2021/22 17



B IR AR R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWE D

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The transactions contemplated under the Cooperation Agreement
constituted a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and were subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant
to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The relevant resolution as set out in the
notice of the extraordinary general meeting of the Company (the “EGM")
dated 21 July 2021 was duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll at
the EGM held on 6 August 2021. The Board was notified by MSPI that it
received the signed Cooperation Agreement dated 9 August 2021 from
PAGCOR, and the Cooperation Agreement took effect for a period of fifteen
(15) years as from 1 April 2016 until 31 March 2031 (both dates inclusive),
unless otherwise lawfully terminated in accordance with the Cooperation
Agreement.

Following the execution of the Cooperation Agreement, MSPI and PAGCOR
jointly established the Management Committee as a governing body for
the management and operations of the casino and commenced casino
operations, in which MSPI has the authority to participate in the
management of the casino through the Management Committee.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
10 June 2020, 18 June 2020, 22 June 2020, 18 September 2020,
5 November 2020, 26 February 2021, 16 July 2021, 6 August 2021, 13
August 2021, 30 August 2021 and 28 February 2022; and the circular of the
Company dated 21 July 2021.

In view of MSPI's participation in the casino operation during the Year, the
Company considered it is more appropriate to present the Group's
business segment as “Gaming Operation” while its properties will remain
the same as “Investment Properties”.

Save as disclosed above, there was no acquisition or disposal of subsidiary
and associated company or significant investments of the Group, which
would have been required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules for the
Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to explore the market and identify any business
opportunities which may provide its growth and development potential,
enhance the profitability, and strive for better return to the Shareholders.
The Group will also continue to consider a renovation plan to improve the
properties of the Group as well as the facilities therein so as to attract more
guests and enhance their experience during their stays.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company is Peso, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s major subsidiaries
operate. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in HKS as the Directors consider that it is an appropriate presentation for a
company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of the Shareholders.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso
and EURO. The Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD
and Peso while the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in
HKS and Peso. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to currency risk.

The Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign currency
exposure for each business segment and review the needs of individual
geographical area, and consider appropriate hedging policy in future when
necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was 218 as at 30 June 2022
(as at 30 June 2021: 201). The staff costs for the Year was approximately
HK$33.0 million (the Previous Year: HK$31.3 million), among which, HK$31.6
million (the Previous Year: HK$31.3 million) was included in the general and
administrative expenses, and HKS1.4 million (the Previous Year: HKS Nil)
was included in cost of sales. The remuneration policy of the Company is
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company. The
remuneration of the Directors and the employees of the Group is based on
the performance and experience of the individuals and is determined with
reference to the Group's performance, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions. In addition to the salaries,
the employees of the Group are entitled to benefits including medical,
insurance and retirement benefits. Besides, the Group regularly provides
internal and external training courses for the employees of the Group to
meet their needs.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period is set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBAESERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (“Mr. Ho"), aged 50, joined the Company in
September 2020, and is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is also a member and
the Chairman of the executive committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. He is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ho possesses more than 20 years of extensive experience and
exceptional expertise in the gaming and hospitality industry, mainly with
the Genting Group. He also has a vast knowledge and experience in the
establishment and operation of casinos and integrated resorts throughout
the industry. Mr. Ho specialises in and has deep understanding of the Asian
gaming and hospitality industries. He is a Certified Public Accountant who
previously received intensive training at KPMG Peat Marwick Malaysia.
Mr. Ho is the executive chairman and director of Frontier Capital Group
Limited, which was previously listed on the Australian Securities Exchange
(ASX code: FCQ).

Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is an exempted limited partnership
established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law of
Cayman Islands. The general partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is
Excite Investments Holdings Limited, an exempted company established
under the law of Cayman Islands and is solely owned by Mr. Ho. As such,
Mr. Ho is deemed to be interested in 260,000,000 Shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), representing approximately 18.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ho was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBAEERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante ("Mr. Tablante”), aged 56, joined the
Company in April 2022, and is an executive Director of the Company. He is
also a member of the executive committee of the Company, and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Tablante is currently the chief executive officer of Marina Square
Properties, Inc,, an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and the president of
each of three indirect subsidiaries of the Company, namely Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc., Blue Marine Properties, Inc. and Pacific
Bayview Properties, Inc. (collectively the “Subsidiaries Group in the
Philippines”). Mr. Tablante has been with the Group since 2018,
overseeing the strategic planning, overall operations and corporate
management affairs in the Subsidiaries Group in the Philippines.

Mr. Tablante holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Management
Engineering from De La Salle University (DLSU), Manila, Republic of the
Philippines in 1986. He possesses more than 20 years of senior
management experience in hospitality industry.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tablante was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (ZIRZ 54 ) ('Mr. Lau’), aged 44, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in June 2020. He is also a
member and the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member
of the audit committee of the Company.

Mr. Lau holds a Master's degree in business administration from The
University of lowa and a Master’s degree in corporate governance from The
Open University of Hong Kong (now known as “Hong Kong Metropolitan
University”). He is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). He is
also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and holds a
Diploma in Company Direction.

Mr. Lau has more than 15 years of experience in corporate management,
corporate finance and corporate secretarial areas. Mr. Lau is an executive
director and the company secretary of Gain Plus Holdings Limited (stock
code: 9900). He is also an executive director and the chief executive officer
of Prosperous Future Holdings Limited (“Prosperous Future”) (stock code:
1259). Mr. Lau was previously the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of Prosperous Future from May 2019 to December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBAESERFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (B8EE {2 %4 ) (‘Mr. Cheng’), aged 42, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in January 2021. He is
also a member and the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
each of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor's Degree of Commerce in Accounting from
Macquarie University in Australia. He is a Hong Kong Certified Public
Accountant and a member of CPA Australia who has over 15 years of
managerial experience in auditing, finance and accounting. Mr. Cheng has
extensive experience in financial and accounting as well as assurance and
advisory services in Hong Kong and Australia, where he has gained
expertise to a range of industries, including financial services, food and
beverage, software houses, hospitality, manufacturing and not-for-profits
organisations. He is also well experienced in internal auditing in various
leading financial institutions, including those related to internal controls
over financial reporting as well as daily operation procedures.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Chung Dan (8 X % %) (formerly known as Chung Ching Man)
(“Mr. Chung"), aged 66, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director in April 2022. He is also a member and the chairman of
the nomination committee and a member of each of the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Chung is a practicing barrister and licensed mediator. He graduated
from The Nottingham Trent University with a Bachelor of Laws degree with
honours in June 2003. He subsequently obtained Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from City University of Hong Kong in July 2005.

Mr. Chung was subsequently called to the Hong Kong Barrister in 2007 and
has been practicing since then. He was also a holder of licences of
regulated activity 6 (advising on corporate finance) of Securities and
Futures Commission from 12 June 2004 to 8 June 2006, and an
entrepreneur in various fields before practising as a barrister. Mr. Chung
currently serves as independent non-executive director of Gain Plus
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 9900). He has extensive experience in the practice of
law.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chung was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBAEERFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT BREEAE

Mr. Chan Chun Lam (B & & % 4) (‘Mr. Chan’), aged 50, joined the PREFREE ([FELE]) 505 R = —F )\
Group in August 2021. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business HAIMBAEE - RAEA B EE S SSAETIHE
Administration in Accounting with honors from Hong Kong Baptist 1B (48)E 4By - TS E - L AF
University. Mr. Chan is a registered Certified Public Accountant (Practising) @:itEi AT M E SR EFTEE8 - KINA

and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public HEEHFARLHMASEESE - EIMALA
Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered & & - E%%ETEE‘@‘&EA REBR GBS L
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chan worked for  ZFREB LT AR c BRAEEN KB LT EEERE

an international accounting firm and a number of listed companies in ET?’EEﬁNEﬁ%%«  REBE REYEEA
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has over 27 years of professional experience in  HEINMER L Z &5 o

auditing, and financial management. He also has extensive experience in

hotel and gaming business.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Report of the Directors

ESEWRES

The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Units 2109-10,
21st Floor, Wing On House, No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 107 to 108 of
this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2022 (for the year ended 30 June 2021: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022 is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
6 to 19 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 62% (for the year
ended 30 June 2021: 47%) and 67% (for the year ended 30 June 2021: 48%)
respectively of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of a Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 235 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 14
and 15 respectively to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

Particulars of the principal properties of the Group are set out on page 236
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 June 2022, which is calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Islands Companies Law") and the Company’s
Articles of Association, amounted to HKSNil (2021: HK$766,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 111 of this annual report and note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations were made by the Group (2021:
HKSNil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chairman of the Board on 1 April 2022)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (resigned on 31 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ka Ho

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai

Mr. Chung Dan (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene (resigned on 31 March 2022)

On 31 March 2022, each of Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (“Dr. Choi") and
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene (“Mr. Ha") resigned as executive Director and
independent non-executive Director respectively, in order to devote more
time to his other business commitments which require more of his
attention and dedication. Each of Dr. Choi and Mr. Ha had confirmed he
had no disagreement with the Board, and there were no matters relating
to his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders or the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Company, each
of Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante and Mr. Chung Dan, who has been
appointed with effect from 1 April 2022, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Lau Ka Ho and Mr. Cheng Hong Wai shall retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company
and shall then be eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines under the Listing Rules, and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed

“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to
23 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2022, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO) or which were required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which were required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the REATBROREBEERODZHE :
Company:
Number of Shares
ROGEE

Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Personal Corporate share capital of
Name of Director interest interest Total the Company Nete2
ERDTEBRITRAE
EEpnA B AR DR e A E ot wE2
Mr. Ho Wong Meng = 260,000,000 260,000,000 18.99%

Ho Wong Meng 7t 4

Notes:

(1) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner) which was wholly-owned by Mr. Ho, an executive Director.

2) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(Note 1) (Fffz£ 1)

it -

(1) % M2 15 A Excite Opportunity Fund LP. (X & —fR &
HESHSERREREBLEEIRINERRERE
BOE)FE THRTERHOEEZERED
Excite Investments Holdings Limited ({fE & & B4A #Z A)
=g

Q BAUBRR-_Z-_—FXA=1+BZEBITERH
1,369,157,235 AR EY EAEETEH ©

BEXHEEEN R —FXA=1TH"
EEFHARBERTHRABBRERNARERE
HEZE(ER AR S RPEHRMFEXVEL) 2k
7~ HEROHESFF  BHEIERERBRE
& 75 M B 1G5 352 (R BB BT E 2 B
ZEMEREAR - IRBEFEETAERTAE
ARF NP2 EAERIORR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2022, the following persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) were interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company which were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

FTERRRESG. HEAKRORESZE
2 Rk

RZBZZFRA=1TH BERFRBEESFR
HIE RO 336 IR AFEMRR B RMATR - 3R
iReE 7 M RIS XVERSE 2 M B 3 0 BR 2 1R K
ETARRIERENES AR F D EHITAAN 5% IA
FRESOALTIEB(BEEHARRERTRAE
RSN EAE -

RAERTAROREBRG ZHFA

Approximate

percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Shares held the Company Mete3)
EERDRABBRITRE
RERE 478 EEE 56 HAENRAYE BT oy
Excite Opportunity Fund LP. Beneficial owner 260,000,000 18.99% (otesiond2)
Excite Opportunity Fund LP. EREA A (W1 52)
Excite Investments Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.999% (More?
Excite Investments Holdings Limited R NI 3= 1)
Glorious Future Fund SPC Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% Mete2)
Glorious Future Fund SPC RS A R Z (Hiz2)
AG Investment Management Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18999 (Note2
AG Investment Management Company Limited St i VNI 0 (w322)
Mr. Tang Yuk Fan Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% (ore?
Tang Yuk Fan 754 T AT 7 (Hiz2)
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd Beneficial owner 131,800,000 9.63%
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd E=fEBA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Notes:

M

These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner). Accordingly, Excite Investments Holdings Limited was deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

Glorious Future Fund SPC was the limited partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.,
whose management shares were held by AG Investment Management Company
Limited in its capacity as investment manager. AG Investment Management
Company Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. Tang Yuk Fan. Accordingly, each of
Glorious Future Fund SPC, AG Investment Management Company Limited and
Mr. Tang Yuk Fan was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Excite
Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, the Company had not been
notified by any person or company, other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company whose interests are set out in the section headed
“DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” in this report, who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures

of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under

the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.
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BRGRE (#)

RAERAROGREBRG ZHFR : (&)

st -

(1) #5179 A Excite Opportunity Fund LP. (RIEF S8t S
BEREEREEEEZENINEREEREBEE)
#4 -+ I A Excite Investments Holdings Limited ({1 &
BEBA)EE - Bt - BEFESRIERD] - Excite
Investments Holdings Limited #3474 Excite Opportunity
Fund LP. 5B MR R #E 2 o

) Glorious Future Fund SPC /4 Excite Opportunity Fund LP. &
BRAEZA - HEEM A AG Investment Management
Company Limited bA#R B €32 & {95 © AG Investment
Management Company Limited B4 Tang Yuk Fan St £ 2 &
WH - At BEFESF REE KA - Glorious Future
Fund SPC * AG Investment Management Company Limited
K Tang Yuk Fan 5 & & B # R /& 7 Excite Opportunity
Fund LP. 3B HIR D R HER HEas ©

(3) BAOLMER-_ZE-_—_FA=1+HZEETKH
1369,157,235 IRA) B XEHTTETH

B EXFWBEEN RZEBE-_—FXA=1+1"
METMALTHKAR(EZERARBDEZTHA
8 HERENARE EEREBTRAEREK
1% - R RfEH 2 Em AR | —&IBRIM)
MEARARNBEBREEFRBEROIEXVEE?
REIDEZAEBRARNAREE - ARARQEIR
BEAMERNEBIEBFE 2 Z MRtk
ZANRIRAD « ARG REFHIESIORE ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme’)
was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders on 1 November 2017 and
became unconditional on 2 November 2017. A summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and/or
rewards to eligible participants for their contributions to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are full time or
part time employees of the Group (including any directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group); and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords
or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the time
of making an offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period of
ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the particular option but
subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to the early
termination of the Share Option Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option Scheme for
which an option must be held or the performance target which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible participants in
writing (@and unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board may
from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
inclusive of, from the date upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the earlier of the date falling 10
years after the adoption date or the termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. An option shall be deemed to have
been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the eligible participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five (5) business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of business
on the date which falls ten (10) years after the adoption date, after such
period no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet exercised.

Movements relating to the share options granted during the year ended
30 June 2022 were as follows:

REBRHERTE ()

BT E 2 F

BB AR HE AT 815 B 3R A B HREE 2R B HAE R+ (10)
FERZERBGERKER AEA—BEER
RZHEE - B EEROEMERE  EBR
R B 2 13 FE B R AT Bl M S AR LE AT IR
BRARTTEZ ERBREDE RN RER -

BE_FT__FRA=THLFE FHECKEH
BREZZHWT

Number of share options
BREHAE
At 1July At 30 June Exercise
Date of grant Capacity 2021 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2022 Validity period price
® ®
—E--F —g-—F
REBH g tA-H 2R [BXig:d EF3: g% AA=t+A BYH 7|
HKS
BT
4 December 2017  Business partners 13,691,572 - - - - 13,691,572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
S 3 BB —tF+-AmBZE
+-AmA _7_t¢+ A=H
13,691,572 s & = B 13,691,572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
“T—+tF+-_AmHEZE
“Z-t$+-A=R
13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
—tF+-AMBEZE
_7_t¢+ A=A
13,691,572 - - - - 13,691,572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
—tF+-AmBZE
_%_t¢+ HA=H
9July 2018 Advisor 13,691,572 B - - - 13,691,572 9 July 2018 to 8 July 2028 157
—T-N\F B “Z-\FtANBE
+ANH T \FtANR
68,457,860 - - - - 684573860
During the Year, no option of the Company was granted, exercised, R » AN N ) ERED EIZE - 17 - ¥

cancelled or lapsed. As at 30 June 2022, the Company had 68,457,860
accumulated total outstanding share options under the Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$1.94 and HK$1.57 per Share. Save for the
aforementioned share options, the Company does not have any other
outstanding share option. The total number of shares available for issue by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme was 68,457,863 shares,
which represents approximately 5% of the Company's issued shares as at
30 June 2022.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every Director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of the duty of
his/her office.

The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the convertible bond as disclosed
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the Director's connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed, there were no other contracts of significance between
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.
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CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes in the information
of the Directors are as follows:

M

34

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley resigned as executive Director with effect
from 31 March 2022 and should jpso facto cease to be the chairman
of the Board, the chairman of the executive committee of the Board,
and an authorised representative under the Rule 3.05 of the Listing
Rules (the “Authorised Representative”);

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene resigned as independent non-executive
Director with effect from 31 March 2022 and should jpso facto cease
to be a member and the chairman of the audit committee of the
Board, and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Board;

Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante has been appointed as executive
Director and a member of the executive committee of the Board
with effect from 1 April 2022;

Mr. Chung Dan has been appointed as independent non-executive
Director, a member and the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Board and a member the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Board with effect from 1 April 2022;
and

following the resignation of Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, Mr. Ho Wong
Meng, the chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief
Executive Officer”), has been appointed as the chairman of the
Board, the chairman of the executive committee of the Board and an
Authorised Representative with effect from 1 April 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, the following Director is considered to have interests in
the business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules,

B IRRE AR R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Report of the Directors

ESERES

EENHPRBDAELS

FR - REETRA THEEREARERES
D 5 R B S T A A o T LB AR 2 T
BEAES  FENIIOT

particulars of which are set out below:

Name of entity which business
is considered to compete or

Description of business of
the entity which is
considered to compete or

likely to compete with the business likely to compete with the Nature of interest in
Name of Director of the Group business of the Group the entity
WRREAEBMELER
HEBRERELAEBMEBER RARERRF2ERZ
EEgE FAREBRREZERER EBHE REZERERME
Mr. Ho Wong Meng Frontier Capital Group Limited and Gaming Executive chairman and
its subsidiary director
Ho Wong Meng %t 4= Frontier Capital Group Limited LB HWITEERRES
SR YN
Note: Mr. Ho is interested in 41,443,500 shares of Frontier Capital Group Limited,  ffa# : Ho %t 4 1 Frontier Capital Group Limited Z 41,443,500

representing 15% of the number of issued shares of Frontier Capital Group Limited.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above-mentioned entities
and the above Director cannot control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the business of these entities.

For the year ended 30 June 2022, save as disclosed above and as so far as is
known to the Directors, no Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or in existence during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 30 June 2022.

& A% 15 % 5 # %5 - 48 & 7 Frontier Capital Group
Limited 2 ZE T {7 15% °
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
on pages 38 to 56 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are in line with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set
out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report
of annual results, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights provisions in the Articles of Association of
the Company, or under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
Shareholders.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
have been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Ho Wong Meng
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 September 2022
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures and to complying with the statutory
and regulatory requirements with an aim to maximising the Shareholders’
values and interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’ transparency
and accountability. Hence, the Company adopted the principles and the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code that were in force
during the Year as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its code of
corporate governance (the “CG Code”).

Throughout the Year, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for the deviation from the code provisions which are explained
below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley has resigned as the executive Director and
stepped down from the position of the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman’) with effect from 31 March 2022. Mr. Ho Wong Meng
(“Mr. Ho") who serves as executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer,
has been appointed as the Chairman with effect from 1 April 2022. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership, allows for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to
the business prospects and management of the Group. Although Mr. Ho
performs both the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer is clearly established. These two roles are performed by Mr. Ho
distinctly.

The Company will apply and comply with the applicable code provisions
as set out in the new CG Code (came into effect on 1 January 2022), the
requirements under which shall apply to the Corporate Governance Report
of the Company in the forthcoming financial year ending 30 June 2023.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct for securities transactions by directors (the “Required
Standard of Dealings’).

All Directors have confirmed, following the specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the Required Standard of Dealings
throughout the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal duty of the Board is to ensure that the Company is properly
managed in the interest of the Shareholders.

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises five Directors, of whom two are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The names
of the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chairman on 1 April 2022)

Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante (appointed with effect from 1 April 2022)

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (resigned on 31 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ka Ho

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai

Mr. Chung Dan (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene (resigned on 31 March 2022)

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the
Group. Biographical information of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. Updated list of Directors identifying their role and
function are maintained on the websites of the Stock Exchange at
http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at http://www.ientcorp.com.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established, and is responsible
for the management of the Board and ensures that all Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief
Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group and oversight of the management. The management is responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The roles and division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
clearly established. In addition, the Company has established the executive
committee, the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee with respective terms of reference to assist the
Board in focusing on specific matters, fulfill their roles and functions
delegated by the Board, and make any necessary recommendations of the
Board.

Presently, Mr. Ho Wong Meng assumes the roles of both the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer. The reasons for the deviation of the code
provision A.2.1 under the CG Code are set out in the section headed
“Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code”.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company complied and fulfilled with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the number of independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board and that at least one
of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of the Directors

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in A4.2 of the CG Code all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of
the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Each of Mr. Lau Ka Ho, Mr. Cheng Hong Wai and Mr. Chung Dan, who were
appointed as independent non-executive Directors, entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing on
the date of his appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

SEEARE

EEgw)
EERF ERBEERER

REANRMBERMAAFEBQ) G EFHED
BRERZETEMALFERES  NWEMEFS
R ERIIERABETELMBES - BRES
ERENEMBRERZENESAIBREEEE
FRZEERRAGALANZE LEREME - M
EEZeXTFRRAESEMEKRBZENE
EZEAREIEARA TERRBFRE  AFE
BIREBEE -

RETEERERTA TG EA421E 28
ERAELB=FHMESTRE IR I REARQ
FIEMERARNEL R REERREFKE

J:' ERAB =N HNEFR(RWEFTARALIF
NWMEE - AIARRBIBRAIR=7 Z—E’J

%%A%&)WA\EM‘LE EEBRESAELE

FRERBFRG LRE—KX -

BRZALE BEBEENBRALEZELSS
MIEHITES  DRIEARBRLERMER BF
TFRHERH=F BARBEARRHEBERA
At EE o

KQETE?%%%?HFZ%Z%E%@
CREASAAELRETRTRE

R ER

Annual Report &% 2021/22 41



B IR AR R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Corporate Governance Report
TRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to approve, among other things, the
financial results of the Company. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to give the Directors an opportunity to attend. All Directors are
invited to include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. For all
other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given to Directors. Directors
can attend Board meetings either in person or by electronic means of
communication.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than by a written resolution. Independent non-executive Directors
who, have no material interest in the transaction will be present at such
Board meeting.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking minutes
of all Board and Board committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to
Board or Board committee members unless a conflict of interest arises and
the final version of minutes are open for inspection by the Directors upon
reasonable notice.

For the year ended 30 June 2022, seven Board meetings, one annual
general meeting and one extraordinary general meeting were held.

The external auditor attended the AGM held on 24 November 2021 to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence and the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) ES5g#)
Board Meetings (Continued) BEEgER(®)
Details of the attendance of directors are set out below. The attendance of ZEEH Ee 3% Y S EHLIMNT - i ERNP R E

ZENESEMS  RHELEDSRETAME
TZEHRBEMIIL -

a Director is stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his
tenure if he was appointed part way during the Year.

Number of meetings during the Year

FAERRE
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHE SEEBHE
AGM EGM
held on held on
Board 24 November 6 August
Meetings 2021 2021
R=B=—%
+—A R=Z=—%f
—+mA NARH
BITHRR BTHRRE
BEEeged BFEXE BRIKE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board  Ho Wong Meng 5t 4
and Chief Executive Officer) e (BEF G FEHRITEAREL) HHD 6/7 11 11
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante "ot Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante 5t 4 (##2) 11 N/A i A N/A i
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley Mt EEAIE {H + (W3 6/6 1/1 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors B FHITES
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BIRZELE 7/7 1/1 1/1
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai BERERA 7/7 1/1 1/1
Mr. Chung Dan o9 48 K 5 e (Fiake) 11 N/A TiE A N/A iE A
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene B H o Jp Hp is) 6/6 1/1 /1
Notes: Bfat -
1) Following the resignation of Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, Mr. Ho Wong Meng was (1) HEZZEIEE T FHT1% - Ho Wong Meng EABE R =&
appointed as the Chairman of the Board on 1 April 2022. ZFNA—BRZAREFTEIFE -
@) Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante was appointed as executive Director on 1 April 2022. (20 AurelioJr.Dizon Tablante £ A B R = = =FMA—H
BZERWITES -
?3) Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley resigned as executive Director and the Chairman of the  (3) Z2EELIEN S —_F=-A=+—HEHRTE
Board on 31 March 2022. EHREFEER -
4)  Mr. Chung Dan was appointed as independent non-executive Director on  (4) #EXRFEHAER T _FMNA—BEZERBLIFH
1 April 2022. TEE -
(5)  Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene resigned as independent non-executive Directoron  (5) EBHAEEABRR T _—_F=A=+—HEHEBE 3k

31 March 2022. HITES -
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each of
them will receive a Director’s Handbook which contains the terms of
reference of the Board's committees, the information on the duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and the Listing
Rules, and other information on corporate governance matters. They will
also receive the materials on the operations and business of the Group.

The Directors should participate in continuing professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has provided the Directors with the monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, position and prospects, and the latest development of the
Listing Rules, and the relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have provided the Company with their training records for the
year ended 30 June 2022 and all of them had participated in continuing
professional development activities by attending the training courses,
seminars, workshops and/or training on corporate governance, regulatory
development or other relevant topics during the year ended 30 June 2022.

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the Directors have participated in the
following continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills:

HITES
Ho Wong Meng & 4

Executive Directors
Mr. Ho Wong Meng
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante

Independent non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BIRz%EAE

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai BFRE S A

Mr. Chung Dan BRI E
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BOARD COMMITTEE
Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”)
comprises two executive Directors as at the date of this annual report,
namely Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Executive Committee) and
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante.

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are, inter alia, to advise the
Board in formulating policies in relation to the business operations of the
Group, supervise the management to implement the policies laid down by
the Board, make recommendations to the Board as to the Group's business
plans, and oversee the management and the daily operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance with
Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Lau Ka Ho and Mr. Chung Dan, with written terms of reference which
are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company. At least one of the members of the Audit Committee possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualification as defined under the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, inter alia, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditor, to review the financial information of
the Group, and to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management functions of the Group.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor not less than twice
to discuss the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group
during the Year and had reviewed the interim report of the Company for
the six months ended 31 December 2021 and the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2022. The Audit Committee also
received the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as the Company’s external auditor subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems
of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group,
the Company’s reports and accounts including the interim and annual
results of the Group, the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and provide advice and recommendations to the Board.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

EREEERE

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (Chairman) ™" BREE (B S A () (i)
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BT

Mr. Chung Dan 2 45 o 4 A (H222)

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene ®te3 B o 4 A i)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Cheng Hong Wai was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee on
1 April 2022.

) Mr. Chung Dan was appointed as a member of Audit Committee on 1 April 2022.

(3) Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene ceased to be the chairman and a member of Audit
Committee on 31 March 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision A.5.2 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “"Nomination
Committee”) comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director as at the date of this annual report, namely
Mr. Chung Dan (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Cheng Hong
Wai and Mr. Ho Wong Meng, with written terms of reference which are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to review
the structure, size and the composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
to the Board on any proposed changes to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman,
the managing Director or the Chief Executive of the Company; and to
nominate and recommend candidates to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
for the Board's approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy") setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural/
educational background, or professional experience) required on the Board
based on current and projected future activities of the Group, and the
extent to which the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity are represented on the Board; to oversee the Board succession to
maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to propose to the Board the measurable objectives;
and to review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss any required changes
with the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy

In regard to the criteria for evaluating and selecting candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall consider two types of qualifications, as
follows:

I. Selection Criteria

(i)  Characteristics of individual director
Integrity and accountability
Informed judgment
Prudence and maturity
Principled and professional

Other characteristics as the Nomination Committee
deems appropriate

(i)  Competencies in the following areas to ensure the Board's
overall suitability

Accounting and finance
Law

Industry knowledge
Marketing

Other competencies as the Nomination Committee
deems appropriate

The Nomination Committee shall also consider:
the structure, size and composition of the Board;

the appropriate mix of competencies between Directors to
enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively;

the appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge,

expertise and diversity of the Board is maintained, and the
Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board is followed;

the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary time
and commitment to the role; and

the potential conflicts of interest, and independence.

48 Annual Report %3 2021/22

EEEZEE#H)

REZE® (&)

BERE

T ERBRFEEAZLEATE  2EES
EZENATRIEEER

m
%
a9

1. EREIEE
() BEBZEAEZ

HIEREE

B A e

BERAIRESR

REZBER/EE ZHEMFE
i RN %EHHZE%E e URRES

SRBERE

EESEE

e

TTRAH

[EEZ ]

REZBER/EE ZEMBE

Ae
REREGTHEE :
ESQ2RE - ABRMAEX

EXHCBERNASEE - Mk
REEZSAREITERE

EESSRURKE - £ ANE - F
¥ANFEREZT T AgEFRE T
BESZeMEMESTSLILLEES
ES/ PR

38 ATLE A B IR AP I KA
ZBEN K

BENREREBILGN -



International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR R A

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

fl,

Selection Criteria (Continued)

If more than one candidate are nominated by the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee shall base on the criteria
and recommend the most competent candidate to the Board. The
Nomination Committee shall also consider the number of board
positions they hold in other firms. After the Nomination Committee
reviewed and considered the candidates, the Nomination
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy. Detailed
background information in relation to potential candidate should be
provided to all Directors for consideration. An offer of a director
appointment must be made by the Board’s approval, with any
recommendations from the Nomination Committee having been
circulated to all Director. The new director shall sign a consent letter
to act as a Director.

Nomination Procedures

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules, (i) every Director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years, all retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election at each AGM; and (ii) any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next general
meeting of the Company, the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election at the general meeting of the Company.

For those who offered themselves for re-election at the AGM or the
other general meetings of the Company, the Nomination Committee
shall take into account the fulfillment of duties, contribution, and
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings. The
Nomination Committee shall also access whether the retiring
Directors continue to meet the criteria. After the Nomination
Committee reviewed and considered the retiring Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board.

Based on the recommendations made by the Nomination
Committee, the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the
AGM or other general meetings of the Company, and provide
available biographical information of the retiring Directors in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules to enable
the Shareholders to make informed decision on the re-election of
such retiring Directors at the AGM or other general meetings of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

2. Nomination Procedures (Continued)

The Nomination Committee considers that all Board members
possess the relevant skills and knowledge in the area of the business
operations of the Group with several of them also possess
professional qualifications. The Nomination Committee considers
that an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise
and diversity on the Board is maintained and therefore no
measurable objectives were proposed to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings, (i) to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; to
assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; (i) to review the Board Diversity Policy and monitor
its implementation; (iii) to review the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; (iv) to recommend the appointment of new
Directors; and (v) to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are
set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEERE

Mr. Chung Dan (Chairman) ®°t" SER LA () ()
Mr. Ho Wong Meng Ho Wong Meng 7t 4
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai efe? B[ B (& 4 A (Hit2)

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene 9 B H o g A (i)

Notes:

(1 Mr. Chung Dan was appointed as a member and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee on 1 April 2022.

(2) Mr. Cheng Hong Wai ceased to be the chairman of Nomination Committee on
31 March 2022.

(3) Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene ceased to be a member of Nomination Committee on
31 March 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.1.2 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee’) comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cheng Hong Wai and Mr. Chung Dan,
with written terms of reference which are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy and to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group, and the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors.

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of individuals and is
determined with reference to the Group’s performance, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to review the remuneration policy of the Company and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors
and the senior management of the Group.

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee
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Committee meeting Attended/
Eligible to Attend

FMEESERE BHE HEER
HEZEESER

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman) BIRRGEE(EE) 2/2

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai BER{Z A4 2/2

Mr. Chung Dan (ot ) §ER S WD N/A N iE

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene ™ot BH I g W) 2/2

Notes: Bt -

1) Mr. Chung Dan was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee on (1) BREER - -_—_FNA—HEZTAFTHNEES
1 April 2022. K8 o

(2) M. Ha Kee Choy Eugene ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee ~ 2) ~ BHAFXERZZE__F= A=+—B THEEHMH
on 31 March 2022. ZEEKE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to
time;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the employees of the
Group; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Chun Kit resigned as the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”’) on 20 January 2022.

On 20 January 2022, Ms. Li Wing Wah has been appointed as the Company
Secretary in place of Mr. Wong. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Li was engaged
and appointed by the Company from an external secretarial services
provider as its Company Secretary.

The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. Ho Wong
Meng, an executive Director. Each of Mr. Wong and Ms. Li confirmed that
he/she has received 15 hours professional training under the requirement
of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and include the
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
in this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the remuneration in relation to audit
services paid or payable to the auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries
was HK$1,600,000 and HK$500,000 respectively and the remuneration in
relation to non-audit services (including agreed-upon procedures on
interim results and other non-audit services) paid or payable to the auditor
of the Company and its affiliated firm was HK$200,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of the dividends will be subject to
be discretion of the Directors and will be dependent upon the Company's
earning financial condition, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of relevant laws and all other relevant factors.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and investors. The Board
also recognises that effective communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the
Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to
ensure that the investors and the Shareholders receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the publication of
annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all documents on the Company’s website at
http://www.ientcorp.com.

The Board continues to maintain regular dialogues with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group's strategy,
operations, management and plans. The Directors and the committee
members are available to answer questions at annual general meetings of
the Company. Separate resolutions would be proposed at general
meetings of the Company on each substantially separate issue.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are established in order to carry on the business of the entity in an orderly
and efficient manner, ensure adherence to management policies,
safeguard the assets, secure as far as possible the completeness and
accuracy of records, and identify potential risks so as to manage the
identified risks, undertake the measures to mitigate the potential effects of
any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
management of the Group is responsible to identify the potential risks. The
identified risks would then be assessed for the likelihood and impact on
the financial, operational and compliance of the Group. The management
of the Group would undertake relevant measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
identified risks would also be reported to the Directors and disclosed the
significant risks in this annual report. In addition, the Group has adopted a
policy to handle and disseminate the inside information of the Group,
which was designed based on “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong.

During the Year, the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group through the
internal audit function of the Group. The Group engaged an independent
firm to perform the internal audit function to carry out the review on the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered the controls over the financial, operational and compliance of the
Group. The internal audit function of the Group considered the scale of
operations of the Group and resources available and its review was based
on tests of controls, inspection of the related documents and discussion
with the relevant personnel of the Group.

After the internal audit function conducted the review, the internal audit
function submitted its review report to the Audit Committee with the key
audit findings and recommendations to improve the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group which were also presented at the
Board meeting. The internal audit function concluded that no significant
deficiency in the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group was found during the review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

In addition, the management of the Group has provided a confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Having considered the review report prepared by
the internal audit function of the Group and the confirmation on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group provided by the management of the Group, the Board considered
that the existing risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Board also reviewed, and was satisfied with, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and the training programmes and budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and applicable legislation and regulations.

1. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the address of the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and an EGM shall be held within two (2)
months after the date of the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of the date of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene an EGM, the Shareholder(s) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by such
Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to convene an
EGM shall be reimbursed by the Company to such Shareholder(s).

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of requisitioning the
EGM, and be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each to be signed by such
Shareholders or any one of them.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company (Continued)

3 If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of the invalidity and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened.

4. An EGM must be called by written notice of not less than fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days but if
permitted by the Listing Rules, an EGM may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the applicable laws, if it is so agreed by a majority
in number of the Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at
the EGM, being a majority together representing not less than ninety
five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having a right to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company.

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or other
enquires relating to written requisition for an EGM may write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

AMENDMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There have been no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 30 June 2022. The consolidated version of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company and the Articles of
Association of the Company is available on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the website of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”, and together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) were principally involved in gaming
operation (leasing of investment properties equipped with entertainment
equipment and participation in the gaming operation), hotel operation
and live events. The Group strives to maximise shareholder returns, which
is one of the key elements to reinforce the foundation of the Group for
long-term development and success. Fulfilling the Group's corporate social
responsibility is one of the means to achieve this.

The Group believes sustainability is the key to success and has integrated
this concept into its business strategy. In order to pursue a sustainable
business model, the Group has adopted the principles of sustainable
development at operational levels, integrated environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") aspects into its management system and taken
corresponding measures in its governance perspective.

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
summarises the Group's ESG initiatives, plans and performances and
demonstrates the Group’s commitment to sustainable development.

Reporting Period

This ESG Report covers the year ended 30 June 2022 (“2022" or the
“Reporting Period").
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ABOUT THE ESG REPORT (Continued)
Reporting Boundary

The reporting boundary of this ESG Report is consistent with that of the
ESG Report for the year ended 30 June 2021 (“2021"). The reporting
boundary includes the Group’s head office in Hong Kong and the Group’s
operations in the Philippines and Macau.

The reporting boundary is determined based on the revenue contribution
of the operations under the Group's direct operational control throughout
the Reporting Period. As the Group’s core business is conducted in the
Philippines, the Group considers the environmental impact of its
operations in Hong Kong and Macau to be insignificant. Therefore, the ESG
Report does not cover the environmental data of the Group's operations in
Hong Kong and Macau, while the disclosure on social information and data
includes Hong Kong, the Philippines and Macau.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG Reporting Guide”) in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Further Information

Your feedback will help the Group to continuously improve its ESG work
and performance. If you have any questions and/or suggestions regarding
this ESG Report and/or the Group’s ESG work, please communicate with
the Group via email to enquiry@ientcorp.com.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has adopted the following reporting principles, namely
materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance in the preparation of the
ESG Report.

Materiality: The Group determines the impact of various ESG issues on
the Group's operations and its stakeholders through survey. Based on the
results of the stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment survey,
the Group identifies material ESG issues and determines the appropriate
management approach and strategy.

For further details, please refer to the sections headed “STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT” and "“MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT".

Quantitative: The Group has established internal guidelines and
procedures with reference to industry practices, guidelines of the Stock
Exchange or relevant government departments, as well as laws and
regulations, to collect environmental and social performance data from
various business departments, and to keep relevant monitoring instrument
records and supporting documents. Please refer to the relevant sections in
the ESG Report for the standards, methodologies and assumptions (where
applicable) for the calculation of performance data.

Consistency: Where feasible, the Group uses consistent statistical
methods to collect ESG data, and the same conversion methods are used.
Relevant historical data has been disclosed in this ESG Report. If there are
any changes that may affect comparison with previous reports, the Group
will add remarks to the corresponding content of the ESG Report.

Balance: This ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s ESG
performance.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present you the
ESG Report, demonstrating in detail the Group’s approach and
performance in terms of sustainable development in 2022.

The Group strives to create values for its shareholders while fulfilling
corporate social responsibility. Other than maintaining service quality, the
Board is ultimately responsible for overseeing the Group's corporate
governance as well as ESG issues. The Board has a supervisory role in the
data collection process and review of the ESG Report. Information about
the Group's governance structure is stated in the section headed
"GOVERNANCE FOR SUSTAINABILITY".

To prioritise the material ESG-related issues, the Board and the senior
management assess the significance of multiple ESG topics with reference
to different stakeholders’ opinions by communicating with the Group's
stakeholders and regularly inviting them to participate in a materiality
assessment. Information about the stakeholder communication channels
and materiality assessment conducted by the Group is stated in the
sections headed “STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT”" and “MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT” respectively. In order to gain a deeper understanding of
stakeholders’ expectations of the Group’s sustainable development, the
Group will further strengthen its communication with stakeholders and
formulate relevant sustainable development policies and measures with
reference to their opinions to enhance the Group'’s ESG performance.

The Group recognises the importance of setting targets for its ESG
performance. Therefore, the Group has set targets for ESG issues that are
material to the Group. The Board and the senior management use the data
collected to compare the Group's performance in different years to track
the progress of ESG targets. To strive to achieve these targets, the Group
implements different environmental protection measures and raises
employees’ awareness of ESG. Setting ESG targets can help raise the
employees’ awareness of sustainable development and enhance the
Group's ESG performance to meet the expectations of the Group's
stakeholders.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD (Continued)

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow
directors, the management team and all employees for their contributions
to the Group's sustainable development. | would also like to thank all
stakeholders for their prolonged care and support. In the future, the Group
will continue to improve its governance and transparency, provide quality
services and focus on efficient use of resources so as to fulfil corporate
social responsibility and pursue a sustainable future.

Ho Wong Meng
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

GOVERNANCE FOR SUSTAINABILITY

The senior management has adequate knowledge of ESG and they are
familiar with the activities of different business units. They are responsible
for supervising the Group’s ESG measures, collecting and analysing ESG
data, giving suggestions to the Board on ESG issues, reviewing ESG-related
matters and promoting company-wide awareness of ESG issues.

With the assistance of the senior management, the Board oversees ESG
issues, reviews progress made against ESG-related targets and continuously
evaluates and monitors the Group’s ESG performance, risk and
opportunities. The senior management regularly holds meetings to discuss
the effectiveness of the Group’s policies and procedures and seek
opportunities to improve the Group’s ESG performance. The senior
management reports its findings to the Board where appropriate so that
the Board can find solutions to manage the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding its
businesses and ESG performance. To better understand and address their
concerns and expectations, the Group has maintained close
communication with its key stakeholders on a regular basis through various
channels. By gathering their opinions and understanding their concerns,
the Group can refine its policies and approaches on ESG management,
determine a more suitable way to address the ESG issues, and make
continuous improvements in the Group's ESG performance.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

The following table summarises stakeholders’ key communication channels
and their concerns and expectations. While the Group was managing all
ESG affairs which affect its businesses and stakeholders, it identified the
material issues in each sector of its business. The materiality of these issues
is identified through stakeholder engagement exercises, management
reviews and industry analysis.

BFREZHEE)
TEBRABRETTEREERBEM T SE
REE - REMEEEYEH LB RISHENAT
BEE HeREAEHHREN  NHBRIHEEE
BOMNEASE ZERBENS T B BEBH
ELETEY  THEEMRTESNERR -

Stakeholders Key Communication Channels Concerns and Expectations
& FEBERE BEcERRPE
Shareholders/investors  « General meetings Financial performance

Annual financial reports
Announcements and notices
Company website

B BEE . BRRXE
FREBB®RE
NERBE
NCIE S

Hotel guests . Customer service

Customer hotline and email
Customer satisfaction survey

BEEE - BPER#%
EFPARRER
EFREERE
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Sustainable business development

Environmental responsibility

Accurate, complete and timely information disclosure
Shareholders’ rights and interest

Corporate governance
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Customers' satisfaction
Protection of customers’ privacy
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholders
HhE

Employees

7l
0

Suppliers

HER

Communities/
Non-governmental
organisations

i, FEBUR AR 8

Key Communication Channels

EREBRE

Regular performance appraisals
Frequent meetings
Training programs

EHIRIR AT
REEH

EFIERIE

Business meetings
Order/contract execution
Tele-conferences

ESVAE
I-HEYE VAL

T AT 2%
EE=N =

Donations and support to the
community
ESG reports
At E R B R RE R E

W R REAES

RIE  #HE8RERBE

BFREZHE )

Concerns and Expectations

BiEzERERAE

Career development
Occupational health and safety
Remuneration and benefits
Diversity and equal opportunity
ERER

BERELRZE

Fr M K AE A

EPMEI RT3

Corporate contribution
Product quality

Fair and open procurement
Stable relationship
PEFR

EnEE

NS SNE

B BR

Contribution to society
Environmental responsibility
Compliance with laws and regulations
HEaR

RIFEME

BTIRRER
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and employees who are responsible for the key
functions of the Group have assisted the Group to review its operations,
identify key ESG issues and assess the importance of these issues to its
businesses and stakeholders. The Group has compiled a questionnaire with
reference to the identified material ESG aspects to collect the information
from relevant departments and business units of the Group.

The following materiality matrix summarises the Group’s material ESG
issues as set out in the ESG Report:
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Materiality Matrix
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Influence on Stakeholders’ Assessments and Decisions

s BEEMEMHE

@10
a @ o1l
®9

oz @3

®12

Low Significance of Economic, Environmental and Social Impacts High

(8 BB RERMMEFENEEN
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

Labels Material issues

BE EXREE

1 Emissions
HEn

2 Use of resources
BIREA

3 Climate change
SRS

4 Employment practices and labour standards
EIB1EDHI K55 TR

5 Health and safety
REEZ 2

6 Development and training
R N5

7 Supply chain management
HrEsEER

Labels
T

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective

management policies and internal control systems for its ESG issues, and

confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance with the

requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

RIE  #HE8RERBE
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Material issues

EPN- -

Hotel security
BIER 2

Service quality
RIFEE

Customer privacy and data
BEFPMERER
Anti-corruption

RES

Community investment
HERE

Regulatory compliance

HABERE

AEEEREEURE HEREARETEHEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

A.

The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021, the
key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the

Group against the targets:

Key Topics
HEEE

Air and Greenhouse Gas ("GHG")
Emissions

BERRERE(RERE]) P

Waste Management

Defined Targets'
ERIWEZ"

Maintain zero non-compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to
air and GHG emissions.

FE TR AR R ER BN

RIR

2958

TRIMTARBER _T_—FFTUMAE
% HESHENRERBREARAEEEER
BBEIERSAER

Progress

ER

Achieved

RRERER T EERTERBR -

Maintain zero non-compliance with
laws and regulations relating to
the generation and disposal of
hazardous and non-hazardous wa

REEYERE EETEHEERREERER
EEREVNEEER AR
BRTEREN

Note:

1. Due to the revisions of the calculation methods, the Group has revised the
targets it set for the year ended 30 June 2030 (“2030") in 2021. The revised
targets are described in the sections headed “GHG Emissions”, “Waste
Management”, “Energy Consumption” and “Water Consumption”.

The Group dedicates its effort to minimise the impact of the Group’s
business operations on the environment and believes that it is
responsible for protecting the environment. Therefore, the Group
has implemented the Environmental Protection Policy to reduce its
environmental footprint and ensure compliance with environmental
laws and regulations. The policy emphasises the need to conserve
natural resources and energy. It also sets out guidelines on waste
disposal and GHG emissions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. The relevant
laws and regulations included, but not limited to, the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap.311) of Hong Kong, Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap.354) of Hong Kong, Environmental Law (Law No.
2/91/M) of Macau, Republic Act No. 4850 of the Philippines and The
Philippine Clean Air Act (Republic Act No. 8749).
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

In response to the growing concerns about climate change, the
Group has set a target of reducing its total GHG emissions intensity
by at least 5% in 2030, using approximately 96.06 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent ("tCO2ze") per million HKS revenue in 2021 as the
baseline. The Group has adopted various energy-saving measures in
order to pursue its emission target. The relevant energy-saving
measures are described in the section headed “Energy
Consumption”.

Air Emissions

The Group’s major air emissions are generated from the fuels
consumed by the Group’s vehicles. The types of air emissions
generated from the Group’s operations include nitrogen oxides
("NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx") and particulate matter (“PM"). The
Group promotes the minimisation of air emissions generated by the
Group. Therefore, the Group has adopted a series of measures to
strive to reduce air emissions. The air pollutant reduction measures
include encouraging employees to carpool and drive less.

The following table sets out the Group’s air emissions:

Indicators’ BE

NOx emissions (kg) NOHERR (F52)

SOx emissions (kg) SOHERR (F52)

PM emissions (kg) PMEBER (F72)

Note:

1. The air emission calculation is based on the emission factors in “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions are the fuels consumed by the
Group's vehicles, electricity consumption resulted from the Group's
daily operations and refrigerants consumption.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG emissions
intensity was approximately 61.79 tCOze per million HKS revenue
(2021: 96.06 tCO2e per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on-
year decrease by approximately 35.68%. The decrease in the total
GHG emissions intensity was mainly due to the decrease in the total
GHG emissions and the increase in the Group's revenue in 2022
compared with 2021.

RIE  #HE8RERBE

RIE(#®)

BERW (48)
ATEAREE(CERERNES - ZKE
BRI A T —FNEEEATRALY
%06 —_AltixE2((M-StHEE])
BEL R-E=ZTEFHBEERESRE
EFEELSHNEEZ - AEEEBEHEIREE
EEER EASSOER A E B AZ - BN
BEFRMEE SIS [RERIEFE] —&0 °

BESRBERL
AREEEENERIPRENAKETEFER
EORREL o 755 B SR 75 P EE A RE SR HE TV 2R
BREAS/AWNOI) - ALY ([SO0:)
KEFRF(TPM)) - AEBEREZERD
AEBRERBER - Hitt - AEREEFIE—
RO AR D BERIER - B ERS
Rt R iEsE R | HFITELMD B
B e

TRIETASENERNE :

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
6.11 111.9
0.18 0.2
0.45 9.7
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)
GHG Emissions (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group’s GHG emissions:

R (#)

B ()

BERBHK ()
TRIKTAKERREREIN

2022 2021
Indicators’ IEE —E__ =EE==4=
Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions? B (FE 1) )R EREHR
(tCOz) (B—E(HmES 210.17
Energy indirect (Scope 2) RER M (81 2) B =R EEHERC
GHG emissions® (tCOze) (M|t E= 5,074.21
Total GHG emissions (tCO-e) BEREBHEMEE
(B-—FtRER) 5,284.38
Total GHG emissions intensity* BERBHHREERE"
(tCOze/million HK$ revenue) (M-St EE
BEBITHBA) 61.79
Notes: Hiet -
1. GHG emission data are presented in terms of tCOze and are based on, 1. BEREFRBEA—EEmEESE

including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
"How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange, “Guidelines to Account
for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Industrial Purposes) in Hong Kong" issued by
the Environmental Protection Department and the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department, “2015-2017 National Grid Emission —RAFEZT—+tF2EEBE MR
(2015-2017 National Grid Emission Factor) * LA &
BRHAREECEMEESERRTEHRE
(ARS) (ZZ—04F) &y [ 2 BRBRAL B RE(E ] -

Factor” from the Department of Energy of the Republic of the Philippines
and the “Global Warming Potential Values” from the Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change Fifth Assessment Report (AR5) (2014).

2. Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions include emissions from fuel combustion at 2.

mobile sources as well as refrigerant consumption.

3. Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions include emissions resulted from 3,

the Group's purchased electricity.

4. During the Reporting Period, the Group's total revenue was approximately 4.
HK$85,525,000 (2021: HK$64,900,000). The data are also used for calculating

other intensity data.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management

The Group has established guidelines on the management and
disposal of waste.

To reinforce the Group’s commitment to reduce waste, the Group
has set a target of reducing its total hazardous waste intensity by at
least 5% in 2030, using approximately 0.013 tonnes per million HKS
revenue in 2021 as the baseline. The Group has implemented waste
reduction measures and encouraged its employees to optimise the
use of equipment and materials in order to pursue its waste
reduction target.

Hazardous Waste Management

As the Group is involved in hotel operations, various activities such
as the operation of restaurants and maintenance of hotel rooms
generate hazardous waste. The major types of hazardous waste
managed by the Group include fluorescent light bulbs and
containers of chemicals. The Group strictly follows its Policy on
Handling Hazardous Materials and Chemical when handling
hazardous waste to ensure the storage, collection, treatment and
disposal of hazardous waste comply with the applicable statutory
requirements. To avoid leakage, all the hazardous waste must be
stored in a designated location and properly labelled, before being
handled by accredited third party hazardous waste haulers and
treaters.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total hazardous waste
intensity was approximately 0.033 tonnes per million HK$ revenue
(2021:0.013 tonnes per million HKS revenue). The significant increase
in the total hazardous waste intensity was mainly due to the increase
in the need to carry out repair work.

The following table sets out the Group’s hazardous waste
generation:

RE  d2RERES

A. BE#®E)
B (&)
BEYEE
AEEB ST EBEENEEREENED -

AREBAEERVEEMNER  A5ED
IV —FHEEE BT AL0013
MAEE N_ZE=TFRIEEEEVE
EREELUMNEEZ - AEBEERER D
BEZE Ve i R BB E R B E(L (M R EHE
FLAS Sk R B B 1Z o

BEEEREYEE

HAAEERFEERE SR EHNERE
LENAEERREELEERREY - A%
BEENTREEEEMER BRI
MeBmB ARERNRESERREYR
BB THEEEEMHRMCBRBEK - #
REZBEERMODT WK REMEEN
NMRBERER - RBRRR  MABEEE
YIS RIFRAEIE BB AL EERE - R
BRHERANE=ZTEEERYERR N
ErERE -

RBEHRE - AEBENEEZEEEVBRERE
AEAEATWALBME( T - —4F:
FEHEBETWA00IZNE) - EEEEYBE
REMANEENTERARETEE ITIEN
ok -

TRIMTASBMELNEEEEY

2022 2021

Indicators gE —E__ —E-—F

Fluorescent light bulbs (tonnes) 5 R, (R ) 0.08 049

Containers of chemicals (tonnes) b2 mA 2R () 2.75 034

Total hazardous waste (tonnes) EEEEYHEE (M) 2.83 0.83
Total hazardous waste intensity’ EEERYEEEE"

(tonnes/million HK$ revenue) (Mg, BEBITHAN) 0.033 0013

Note:

1. For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction target, the
total hazardous waste intensities were rounded to 3 decimal places.

e -

1. RER A B R ELEITH R BEEE
MEETEIEAAZ MBI -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)

Waste Management (Continued)
Non-hazardous Waste Management

Non-hazardous waste is generated from the daily activities of the
kitchens of the hotel restaurants and administrative work. The major
types of non-hazardous waste include waste cooking oil and paper.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total non-hazardous waste
intensity was approximately 0.03 tonnes per million HKS revenue
(2021: 0.06 tonnes per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on-
year decrease by approximately 50.00%. The decrease in the total
non-hazardous waste intensity was mainly due to the decrease in
the use of cooking oil and the increase in the Group’s revenue in
2022 compared with 2021.

The following table sets out the Group’s non-hazardous waste
generation:

Indicators EE

Waste cooking oil (tonnes) REEh (18)

Paper (tonnes) 4ok (18)

Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes) BMEBEYHRE

Total non-hazardous waste intensity BEBREYHRERE
(tonnes/million HK$ revenue) CVE=T=F-5:-51 9N

The Group has adopted environmentally friendly initiatives to strive
to reduce the Group's generation of waste. Such initiatives include,
but are not limited to:

encourage duplex printing;

separate metal, paper and plastic from other waste for
recycling; and

encourage hotel guests and staff to recycle waste resources.

Through these measures, the Group has achieved positive results.
Recyclable waste collected by the Group is sent to recyclers for
treatment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) RIE(#)
Use of Resources EREH

The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021, the
key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the

TRIMTAEER T -_—FiTuWA
% EBESHAENERBREARAEEEER

Group against the targets: REBSTEBRSHER :

Key Topics Defined Targets Progress

EARHRE ERVNERZ ER

Energy Consumption Reduce the intensity of electricity Achieved
consumption in 2022.

REIRHRE R-IB-__FRIENERETE - BEED

Water Consumption Reduce the intensity of water Achieved
consumption in 2022.

FEK RIZBZ_FRIFEKEE - 2

When the Group operates its hotel complex, electricity and water are AEFELKLERERBEGABEEREREE NN

consumed. As a result, the Group has established the Environmental
Protection Policy to regulate the use of resources. The policy aims to
achieve higher energy efficiency and reduce the unnecessary use of
resources.

Energy Consumption

To reinforce the Group’s commitment to efficient energy use, the
Group has set a target of reducing its total energy consumption
intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using approximately 166.86 MWh
per million HKS revenue in 2021 as the baseline. The Group has
adopted various energy-saving measures in order to pursue its
energy use efficiency target. The relevant energy-saving measures
include:

use LED lights in the hotel rooms;

install variable-frequency drive to regulate the power output
of motors;

reduce the number of fluorescent light bulbs; and
drive less and carpool.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total energy consumption
intensity was approximately 100.65 MWh per million HKS revenue
(2021: 166.86 MWh per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on-
year decrease by approximately 39.68%. The decrease in the total
energy consumption intensity was mainly due to the decrease in the
total energy consumption and the increase in the Group's revenue
in 2022 compared with 2021.

Ke Bt - AEBDHERREEAREER
TREER » ZBR B EIR =R S LR AT
VEREREM

BEIREFE
BREFASEH S EAEIRNARE A%
BEFVA—E-—FHNBAEEETRALY
16686 KELIF RELE  MZT=FFFH
FEHRAETREZELSMBEIZ - AEED
KRS EEREEmASIGER H A RE A
Wz BIR - AR RIS

RBERFEALEDE

RREPEHRARBAD R B HED
#

WMASIEBEE - &

WMAOBE R ARIRE -

e

WMEBA - AEBNEREFREEREA
FEBETWALI0065KER( T = —
FEBEEBTRA6686IKEE) » BILLRE
D#HI3968% ° BEREFEBEZRENRLER
ERREZT - —FIFE —FT - _FR
SHIEB SRR RASE R ARIEN o

Annual Report %5 2021/22 71



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rk dE2RERHS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) AY
Use of Resources (Continued)
Energy Consumption (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group's energy consumption:

BRIR(#)

EREM (&)

BETRMFE (4)

TR T AR B ORLFONHE -

2022 2021

Indicators EE —E-—F —EE =4
Direct energy consumption’ (MWh) BB EEE ' OREE) 121.61 973.30

Diesel’ (MWh) geim JKFLRF) 59.21 185.95

LPG' (MWh) BibABER OKRE) - 696.34

Petrol' (MWh) Ul KR ) 62.40 91.01
Indirect energy consumption (MWh) R EEE (KRE) 8,486.73 9,856.20

Purchased electricity (MWh) BEE N OKRE) 8,486.73 9,856.20
Total energy consumption (MWh) BERHEAE CRKEE) 8,608.34 10,829.50
Total energy consumption intensity RRHERERE

(MWh/million HK$ revenue) (KEE BEBTHA) 100.65 166.86
Note: BisE -
1. The unit conversion calculation is based on the conversion factors in “How 1. BABEGTE AR FTEMA [ EEIR

to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange and the “Energy
Statistics Manual” issued by the International Energy Agency.

Water Consumption

To reinforce the Group’s commitment to water conservation, the
Group has set a target of reducing its total water consumption
intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using approximately 1,184.19 m? per
million HKS revenue in 2021 as the baseline. The Group has adopted
various water-saving measures in order to pursue its water efficiency
target. The relevant water-saving measures include:

encourage all employees and guests to develop the habit of
conserving water consciously;

strengthen the Group's water-saving promotion;
posting water-saving slogans; and

guide employees to use water reasonably.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Use of Resources (Continued)
Water Consumption (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total water consumption
intensity was approximately 848.24 m? per million HKS revenue
(2021: 1,184.19 m? per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on-
year decrease by approximately 28.37%. The decrease in the total
water consumption intensity was mainly due to the decrease in the
total water consumption and the increase in the Group’s revenue in
2022 compared with 2021.

The following table sets out the Group’s water consumption:

RE  d2RERES

RIE(#®)

ERERE)

FEK(4E)

RIBEHR » REENEKEEREAEETE
EA T AL FHK(ZE = —F
FEREBABTWAI184193775K) » B
#)2837% ° FKBEERERRPEERHAR
HoF - —Fil —E - FHEKEERN
A R RS B R A RIIE AN o

TRINH T AEBERFEKE

2022 2021

Indicators EE —E_— =EE==06F

Total water consumption (m?) FEKEE (MLFHXK) 72,545.40 76,854.00
Total water consumption intensity FKEERE

(m3/million HK$ revenue) (ZFKR BEBTHA) 848.24 1,184.19

As the Group's operations are mainly based in Hong Kong, the
Philippines and Macau, the Group does not have any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Packaging Materials

Since the Group’s operations did not involve any industrial
productions, the Group did not consume a significant amount of
packaging materials during the Reporting Period. The disclosure on
the total packaging material used for finished products does not
apply to the Group.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group works tirelessly to mitigate the environmental impacts of
its activities through adopting industry best practices, targeting at
reducing natural resources consumption and emissions. The Group's
Environmental Protection Policy has been established to ensure its
impacts on the environment and natural resources are regularly
monitored and properly managed.

The Group has guidelines to encourage its employees to reduce
water and paper consumption, promote the use of electronic copies
and collect recyclable items. In addition, the Group has its
wastewater treatment plant in place to remove contaminants from
sewage so that the quality of the discharged sewage meets the
requirements of the Philippines’ Laguna Lake Development
Authority (the “LLDA"). To comply with the Republic Act 4850, the
Group submitted the Quarterly Self-Monitoring Reports to LLDA on
time. The activities of the Group comply with the relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations and do not have a
significant impact on the environment and natural resources.

HRAEENEETEVNER  FEER
MR - RS B SKEGE /KR 77 H 3 &
a8 -

BETH
HAAEEERBL NS REMTELEE &
REBRHEHALEERAEEEMEL -
ERRKRAANEREENHETEAR
REH o

BRERRAARER
AREBFENREBRIITEREED -
OB A RIABIRBRE R BER - D R 4
REENNTERBE - AKEDHIERR
BR - BREHERMEEEREHRER
RREBROZE

REBEDHIEIES - HEESRMIKERR
AR B - SE N A B F SR R YR AT B4
Y o AN REBRBSKEER - KB
VIKRMME - SEERBTKE B AIER
EH 4952 R B (Laguna Lake Development
Authority) B ¥ 7E © 438 57 4L A BIE (Republic
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Climate Change

Climate-related issues are affecting societies around the world and
therefore it has also impacted the Group's business. The Philippines,
one of the locations where the Group operates, is particularly
susceptible to climate-related issues such as super typhoons and
flooding. The Group acknowledges the far-reaching impact of
climate change and is eager to combat climate change proactively.
The Group has formulated the Climate Change Policy to enhance its
ability to respond to climate impacts and mitigate the risks and
impacts of climate change on the Group, thereby helping the Group
to adapt to and resist climate change.

Physical Risks

In view of the seriousness of climate change, the Group identified
acute physical risks that might significantly impact the Group. As
climate change is causing extreme weather events to be more
frequent and severe, the Group might encounter situations where
the Group's hotel operations are being adversely affected under
unpleasant weather such as typhoons and heavy rain. The hotel
business is one of the Group’s major sources of income, so the
adverse impact on hotel operations would cause a direct negative
impact on the Group’s revenue. In addition, the extreme weather
events would prevent people from travelling, the reduction in the
number of tourists and thus a reduction in room occupancy in the
Group's hotel would reduce the revenue from hotel operations. If
extreme weather damages the hotel facilities, the Group will
experience a loss of assets.

The Group has taken different actions to manage the
abovementioned acute physical risks. For example, the Group
developed a set of arrangements for extreme weather so that loss
can be reduced or avoided when extreme weather affects the
Group's operating sites. In addition, the Group has purchased
insurance against risks of property loss. It is believed that the
potential financial impacts can be minimised with adequate
preparations for extreme weather events.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)
Transition Risks

Other than climate-related issues which have impacted the Group,
the Group is aware that transition risks associated with climate-
related issues may significantly impact the Group. As different
countries are working on the goals of the Paris Agreement, the
Group expects the laws and regulations related to climate change
are going to be more stringent. As a result, the Group may face legal
risks, which may cause the Group to bear higher operating costs to
comply with regulatory changes.

The Group is devoted to minimising risks that may derive from
climate change. The Group has communicated its actions on climate
change mitigation and adaptation to the public via multiple
channels, particularly the ESG Report. Due to climate change, public
awareness of environmental protection has risen and more people
tend to prefer environmentally friendly products and services. The
Group strives to reduce the market risks associated with climate
change by putting effort into environmental protection. For
example, the Group minimises the use of single-use items such as
plastic tableware in its hotel, provides toiletries with minimal
packaging for hotel guests and encourages hotel guests and staff to
recycle waste resources.

The Group has integrated climate risks into its internal control
process to holistically take account of climate change. Through the
internal control process, the Group recognised the risks and
opportunities that arose in the transition to a low-carbon economy.
The Group will continue to assess the effectiveness of the Group’s
actions on climate change and enhance its resilience against
climate-related issues.
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SOCIAL
Employment

The Group supports equal opportunity for all employees regardless
of gender, age, nationality, religion, sexual orientation, disability, or
other personal characteristics. The Group is committed to providing
an inclusive and harmonious workplace to all employees.

The Group has established its employment policies to fulfil its vision
on people-oriented management. Terms regarding recruitment,
compensation, promotion, working hours and rest periods, diversity,
equal opportunity and dismissal are stated on the Employee
Handbook, which was distributed to every employee. The Group's
policies are in place to ensure that reported incidents of
discrimination are handled fairly and appropriately.

During the Reporting Period, there were no incidents of
discrimination being reported. The Group will continue to increase
employees’ awareness of equal opportunity in the workplace.

The Group strictly follows the labour standards pursuant to
provisions of the Labour Code of the Philippines and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare. The relevant laws and regulations include, but not limited
to, Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong, Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) of Hong Kong, the Labour Relations Law (Law
No. 7/2008) of Macau and the Labour Code of the Philippines.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment (Continued)
The Group’s Workforce

As at 30 June 2022, the total number of employees of the Group was
218 (as at 30 June 2021: 201), all of whom were full-time employees.

The following table sets out the Group’s number of employees by
gender, age group and geographical region:

Indicators EE

Number of employees EEAH

By gender R R &2
Female 4
Male S

By age group BFRARE D
18-30 years old 18 2 305%
31-49 years old 31 £ 495%
50 years old or above 50 EA

By geographical region Rt EE D
Hong Kong and Macau BB RIRF
The Philippines JEEE

Retaining Talents

Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. To retain and
motivate employees, the Group offers a competitive remuneration
package to each employee. The remuneration packages provided for
employees are reviewed annually, where subsequent adjustments
will be made based on the employee’s performance, experiences
and market standards. Apart from salary payments, other staff
benefits include mandatory provident fund contribution, medical
insurance coverage and performance-related discretionary bonuses.
During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a turnover rate of
approximately 33.0% (2021: 42.8%).

RE  d2RERES

g @)

BE &)

FEBHETAE
RZBZ_—FXA=+HB AEEZEER
Hh28ZB(MR-_FE-—F,xA=+8:201
%) BEZHAZBIES -

TRINE T AEE RS - FieAR Kb
ENEB AR :

As at As at

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
R==F== N —F
~NA=1+H NA=+H
218 201

123 75

95 126

62 60

136 123

20 18

12 14

206 187

BEREAST
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RBE AEBERETRESREEERF AN
NS AEETFHBEESEREHD
FONFBEITIRG - BERBEEENRE -
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HhE TREAEEEHEATBSHAK  BEE
B R AE AR IBTEAL - MRS B - A%
EHEE T RARLNBN(ZF = —F:
42.8%) °
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment (Continued)
Retaining Talents (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group’s number and rate of
employee turnover by gender, age group and geographical region:

Indicators BiE

Number and rate' (%) of

employee turnover
By gender? RMRIE 52
Female 4
Male S
By age group? BFi AR 85?2
18-30 years old 18 2= 305%
31-49 years old 31 £ 495%
50 years old or above 5038 A
By geographical region? R EE D2
Hong Kong and Macau B RRFT
The Philippines JEEE
Notes:
1. The calculation method of rate of employee turnover: (total number of
departures in the year + total number of employees at the end of the year)
X 100%.
2. The calculation method of rate of employee turnover by category: (number

of departures in the category in the year + number of employees in the
category at the end of the year) x 100%.

Health, Safety and Security

The health and safety of guests and employees at the Group's hotels,
clubs and properties are the Group's top priority, thus the Group has
established effective systems and policies such as the Alcohol-free
Workplace Policy, Drug-free Workplace Policy, Smoke-free Workplace
Policy and policies on prevention of communicable diseases.
Occasionally, the Group may face unstable conditions in the
Philippines such as terrorism and social unrest. Health and safety
committee meetings are held regularly to review the performance of
the Group’s measures. For the effective implementation of health
and safety measures, regular training is provided to responsible
personnel. Procedures are in place to ensure compliance with local
regulations and other international occupational health and safety
standards.
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68 (33.0%) 85 (45.5%)
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Health, Safety and Security (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards. The relevant laws and regulations
include, but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong, Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282) of Hong Kong, General Regulation on Health
and Safety in a non-industrial work environment (Decree-Law 37/89/
M) of Macau and Republic Act No. 11058 of the Philippines.

The Group has established policies to ensure safety in the workplace.
Multiple measures are taken to protect employees from different
health and safety risks. For example, an employee who has
symptoms of a contagious disease is not allowed to enter the
Group's premises to prevent the spread of the disease. In addition,
the Group is devoted to creating a drug-free and alcohol-free
workplace. During working hours, the Group may conduct a random
alcohol test or drug test with its employees, disciplinary actions will
be taken accordingly if the test shows a positive result. The Group
regularly conducts safety inspections. The management team is
responsible for monitoring and reviewing the policies related to
health, safety and security periodically, and performing regular
checks to ensure the safety of employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued its efforts to
enhance its security and safety management systems. Specifically,
the Group conducted a gap analysis to identify room for
improvement in its operations with reference to the international
standard of security management. The Group will continue to
implement more measures to improve occupational health and
safety.

The Group is committed to building a safety-first culture and
avoiding workplace accidents. During the Reporting Period, the
number of lost days due to work injury was 54. No work-related
fatalities occurred between 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2022. The rate of
work-related fatalities occurred in the past three years including
2022 was 0%.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Health, Safety and Security (Continued)
Other Health and Safety Measures

During the coronavirus disease 2019 ("COVID-19") pandemic, the
Group is highly conscious of the potential health and safety impacts
brought to its employees. Apart from strengthening the sanitation in
its premises to ensure a healthy and safe working environment,
precautionary measures are also taken. All staff members are
required to wear surgical masks or face shields when entering or
staying on the Group’s premises. Anti-epidemic items including
hand sanitisers, disposable gloves, gowns, hairnets, shoe covers are
provided to employees when needed. In addition, the Group
implemented precautionary measures such as temperature
screening before entering the office, and constantly update relevant
policies to keep in line with the government's guidelines.

Development and Training

Investing in people is a valuable investment that the Group can
make for the sustainability of its business whereas the opportunity to
learn and grow is a motivation for employees. The Group
implements its employment policies to offer various development
and training programs to all employees so that they can acquire new
skills and knowledge. The Group will continue to explore and
enhance the effectiveness of its training programs.

To promote a culture of continuous self-improvement, a
performance appraisal is provided annually to ensure that every
employee receives formal feedback on their performance at least
once per year for career planning and development.

Talent Management

The Group values the mutual growth and development of both its
employees and the corporate, therefore, the career development of
its staff is highly supported. In addition, the Group encourages
employees to participate in training programs to enhance their skill
sets and understanding of the hospitality industry.

Other than formal training provided by the Group, the employees
received on the-job training and attend external training sessions
during the Reporting Period, the relevant training hours were not
recorded by the Group during the Reporting Period.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Development and Training (Continued)
Talent Management (Continued)

The following table sets out the average training hours per employee
and percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category:

Indicators BE

Average hours of training per employee’
(hour(s)) and percentage of

employees trained? (%) B 2t (%)
By gender &% 5 &l o
Female g
Male B
By employee category RESERE S
Management EEE
General employees EwmET
Notes:
1. The calculation method of average training hours per employee by

category: total training hours of employees in the category + number of
employees in the category as at the end of the year.

2. The calculation method of the percentage of employees trained by
category: (number of employees trained in the category + number of
employees in the category as at the end of the year) x 100%.

Labour Standards

The Group is well aware that child labour and forced labour violate
fundamental human rights. The Group has adopted its Policy on
Prohibition of Child Labour and employment policies, which strictly
prohibits child labour and forced labour. Personal data are collected
during the recruitment process to assist in the selection of suitable
candidates and to verify candidates’ identities. In the recruitment
process, the Human Resources Division carefully checks the job
applicants’ identity documents. The Human Resources Division
regularly reviews the employment practices and guidelines on staff
recruitment to ensure that the Group's recruitment process is in full
compliance with the Policy on Prohibition of Child Labour and the
and employment policies. To protect human rights, the Group
ensures that employees do not work against their wills. Employees
are encouraged to finish their work efficiently within the working
hours. The Group guarantees to arrange at least 1 rest day per week
for every employee.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Labour Standards (Continued)

If child labour or forced labour is found to be employed as a result of
a breach of the recruitment process, the Group will immediately stop
the work of the child labour or forced labour and conduct an
investigation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
preventing child labour and forced labour. The relevant laws and
regulations include, but not limited to, Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57) of Hong Kong, the List of Jobs Restrained to Minors (Chief
Executive Order No. 343/2008) of Macau, the List of Jobs Prohibited
to Minors (Chief Executive Order No. 344/2008) of Macau and the
Republic Act No. 9231 of the Philippines.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has the responsibility to manage environmental and
social risks along its supply chain. The Purchase Procedures were in
place to ensure all suppliers abide by the laws and regulations in
relation to environmental and social conduct. The Group not only
concerns the price, but also labour standards, human rights, health
and safety, and the environment. The Group regularly communicates
its rigorous standards to all its suppliers. The Group strictly followed
the Purchase Procedures to evaluate the business practices of its
suppliers. During the Reporting Period, all of the Group's 449 key
suppliers were qualified suppliers that met the Group's standards.
The management team regularly reviews the effectiveness of the
Purchase Procedures to maintain high standards of supply chain
management.

Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers

The Group commits to offering quality services to its customers and
meeting their needs in order to retain its customers. Therefore, the
Group regulates its procurement procedures to strive for the best
value for its customers.

To ensure the comfort of all the guests, the Group ensures all linen
and bathroom amenities in its hotel are in compliance with a set of
standardised specifications. Items that do not comply with the
required specifications will be rejected and returned to the
corresponding suppliers. If substitutes for the rejected items are not
readily available or goods are urgently needed, the Group will seek
alternative suppliers which meet the Group’s standards and the User
Department will check if the quality variation is acceptable.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers (Continued)

The Group strives not to over-rely on a specific supplier so as to
ensure the stability of its supply chain and lower the risk of
disruption. When choosing business partners, the Purchasing
Department works with reputable suppliers who provide the Group
with the best quality products, which meet the Group's sustainability
specifications and align with the Supply Chain Code of Conduct.

The following table sets out the number of the Group’s key suppliers
by geographical region:

Indicators itz
Number of key suppliers FTEHEREE
By geographical region RiLEE D

The Philippines JEREE

Hong Kong B

The United States =5

Europe BOM

Other regions HAthi (=

The Group's suppliers are divided into two general categories: (i)
office item suppliers; and (i) hotel item suppliers. At the office level,
suppliers provide routine office items for the Group’s offices,
including stationery, toner and paper, etc. For the hotel segment,
most items are procured for hotel operations and that cover a wide
range of items including beverage, food, linens and cleaning
supplies, etc. The Group is committed to selecting the most suitable
suppliers which meet the Group’s expectations. During the
procurement process, the Purchasing Department assesses the
environmental and social risks of the candidate suppliers with a high
level of objectivity and impartiality.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers (Continued)

In view of the increasing awareness of environmental and social
issues in today’s society, the Group has taken both environmental
and social risks into considerations in the procurement and supplier
selection process, to avoid cooperating with suppliers that do not fit
the Group's long-term vision for sustainable development. The
Group endeavours to keep constant communication with suppliers
and will continue to monitor its supply chain pursuant to the Group's
environmental and social standards. For suppliers who fail to meet
the environmental and social standards, the Group will consider
terminating the Group’s business relationship with them.

Additionally, the Group requires all suppliers to comply with the laws
when supplying goods and services to the Group. The Group also
strongly encourages the Purchasing Department to take note of the
local government’s policy on recommended green product
specifications. For example, the Purchasing Department was advised
to study the materials published by the Philippines government
agencies such as the Department of Budget and Management,
Department of Trade and Industry and Department of Environment
and Natural Resources. By gathering information from multiple
government agencies, the Purchasing Department seeks to develop
a process to procure goods, services and works with relatively lower
environmental impact throughout their life cycle. The management
team regularly reviews whether the Group's suppliers have complied
with laws and regulations. For suppliers which did not comply with
laws and regulations relating to environmental protection, the Group
will consider terminating our business relationship with them.

Local Procurement

The Group intends to allocate budget to local suppliers as the Group
believes that local procurement can support local economic
development and create job opportunities for the local community.
As a result, the Group preferentially purchases goods and services
from suppliers within the region close to its operation. During the
Reporting Period, more than 96% of its key suppliers were located in
the Philippines, the country that the Group performs most of the
business activities.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Service Quality

The Group believes service quality is one of the key factors in the
attainment of customers’ trust. The Group has established policies to
ensure that high-quality services are delivered. In addition, the Group
is committed to handling queries from customers in a timely and
efficient manner. In order to enhance the hotel's services on a
continuous basis, customers are encouraged to provide feedback on
their experience, and the Group has established procedures for
handling customers’ queries and complaints. Well-trained
representatives are always ready to promptly respond to inquiries,
requests and complaints. All complaints will be reviewed thoroughly
and passed to the relevant departments for follow-ups to prevent
similar situations in the future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
safety and health, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided. The relevant laws and regulations
include, but are not limited to, the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Cap. 362) of Hong Kong, Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) of Hong
Kong, Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) of Hong Kong,
Consumer Protection Law (Law No. 12/88/M) of Macau, Macau
Advertising Law (Law No. 7/89/M), Republic Act No. 8293 of the
Philippines and Data Privacy Act (Republic Act No. 10173) of the
Philippines.

Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction

The Group is committed to meeting or even exceeding customers’
expectations on the Group’s service quality. Any requests, complaints
and preferences from guests have to be properly handled in a
courteous, professional and efficient way. If required, complaints will
be followed up by personal calls or letters. The Group has set out
guidelines on obtaining the guests’ preferences when contacting
them. If the Group receives requests or comments from its guests, it
will update the guests’ profiles in the internal system so that their
preferences will be considered in the future. For any unfavourable
comments about the Group's services or facilities, the responsible
department head must be informed as soon as possible to ensure
customers’ complaints are handled properly.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Service Quality (Continued)
Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the number of complaints received by
the Group was 0 (2021: 15). If the Group receives any complaints, the
relevant complaints will be handled promptly with the help of the
hotel staff. Follow-up actions would be conducted where
appropriate to handle any complaints.

As the Group is principally involved in gaming operation, hotel
operation and live events, it was not involved in sales of products
during the Reporting Period. The disclosure on the total products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons and
recall procedures does not apply to the Group.

Advertising and Labelling

The Group is constantly engaged in the promotion of its hospitality
services through various advertising platforms such as the Group's
websites, posters and marketing campaigns. The Group ensures no
misleading or false information is delivered to the public in the
Group's promotional materials. At the Group's hotel, marketing
campaigns are monitored by the management in accordance with
laws and regulations.

As the Group operates in the hotel industry, its operations do not
involve labelling matters.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group recognises the importance of protecting intellectual
property rights. The Group has established a policy to prohibit the
use of illegal or unauthorised computer programs on computers
within the workplace. All the computer programmes used by the
Group were purchased from licensed dealers. The Group closely
monitors its business activities, such as the installation of computer
programmes, to protect intellectual property rights.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Service Quality (Continued)
Customer Privacy and Data

To safeguard the personal data of employees, customers and
stakeholders, the Group established privacy policies which set out
the purpose of personal data collection, the use of personal data, the
transfer of personal data, the retention of personal data, the security
on personal data and the procedures to access or update personal
data with reference to relevant laws and regulations. The privacy
statement is published on the Group’s website to draw users’
attention. The privacy policies are reviewed by the management on
a regular basis and are updated where appropriate. Under the
privacy policies, the Group enforces security and control measures
relating to computer software, email, domains and websites. The
Group's privacy protection measures include, but are not limited to:

only licensed software can be installed on the computers
within the workplace;

password protected workstations, networks and applications;

access to customers’ data is granted to employees based on
their job requirements;

restrictions on the use of USB ports on computers; and

anti-virus and anti-spam solutions are installed and regularly
updated.

Employees are instructed how to manage the data that they have
access to. The Group pays extra attention to customer data
management and no substantiated complaints regarding leakage of
customer privacy or loss of customer data were reported during the
Reporting Period.

To enhance employees’ understanding of privacy and data
protection, the Group communicates its privacy policies to
employees. In addition, the Group conducts awareness campaigns
and provides data privacy training for employees in refresher
programs. The Group has appointed the data protection officer to
conduct compliance inspections of the Group's privacy protection
measures and form a liaison with the National Privacy Commission in
the Philippines.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group maintains the highest standards of openness, uprightness
and accountability, all the employees are expected to observe the
highest standards of ethical, personal and professional conduct. The
Group does not tolerate corruption, bribery, extortion, money
laundering and other fraudulent activities in connection with any of
its business operations. The Group has adopted the Code of
Discipline, which contains terms on anti-corruption and the penalties
for offenses against business ethics. All employees and the
management of the Groups are required to strictly comply with the
Code of Discipline, which states that employees are prohibited, with
only limited exceptions, from receiving tips and gifts from hotel
customers, colleagues or suppliers. Any gifts or favours received,
regardless of value, must be reported to the individual's supervisor.
Any matters of genuine concern will be thoroughly investigated and
actions will be taken accordingly. Training that helps to enhance
employees’ understanding of the anti-corruption provisions outlined
in the Code of Discipline is provided to employees if necessary. In
addition, regular corporate governance training, which covers
knowledge on anti-corruption legislation as well as skills to prevent
corruption at the workplace, is provided to raise employees’
awareness.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The relevant laws
and regulations include, but not limited to, Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) of Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression of
Bribery in the Private Sector (Law No. 19/2009) of Macau and Anti-
Graft and Corrupt Practices Act (Republic Act No. 3019) of the
Philippines. During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or
its employees.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)
Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group has implemented the Whistle-blowing Policy which
enables all employees and third parties such as customers, suppliers
and contractors, to raise any concerns about improprieties,
misconducts, malpractices, wrongdoings, irregularities, fraud or
corruption to the management. Reports and complaints received
will be assessed within a reasonable timeframe. After which, they will
be handled by the Investigating Panel when necessary. Such policy
also aims at protecting whistle-blowers from fear of reprisal,
discrimination or adverse consequences, the identity of the whistle-
blowers will be kept strictly confidential. Any violations or
substantiated allegations will be followed up with effective remedial
action commensurate with the severity of the offense. The Group
reserves the right to refer any cases to the appropriate external
regulatory authorities.

To monitor the effectiveness of the whistle-blowing mechanism, the
Group reviews all complaints received regularly and conducts
investigations if any pattern of improprieties or alleged improprieties
exist that need to be addressed.

Community Investment

The Group recognises the importance of the well-being of the local
communities to the continuous growth of its business. Therefore,
the Group follows its Community Investment Policy to encourage its
employees to take part in a wide range of community activities. The
employees have been encouraged to participate in volunteer
services and contribute to the community in different forms. The
Group's potential community activities focus on areas including visits
and contributions to orphanages and victims of calamities. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not contribute resources to
make community investment due to the social distancing measures
amid the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the Group has actively
considered spending money or time to benefit the community in
the future.
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RIB g RERKRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF H{AFrIRIE. @ RERREIEZIAD
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued) #w3l#@)
“Comply or explain” Provision [ FEFRARRE R

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description

E-3 i

Sections/Remarks

—REERBARERIER B A
Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEA: BBy
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste
— R EE BRAERMBRERBHN  MKRLHHES - BF HRY
NEZEEMELSH
@ EE: R
b) BEBTFTHBTAFBEARZENHRBERZNLRN
EVEHL o
KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions — Air Emissions
RS AE IR IR AT e iR N AR R R U - PR — BESRBE IR
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG  Emissions — GHG Emissions

RS AR IR IR A12

KPI'A1.3

R IE IR AT

KPIAT.4

emissions (in tonnes) and intensity.
BiE (8E 1) REREE (8E2))8
WEGHE) REmE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.

=REHHE (A

PMELEEEENHEE CAETE) RBE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
intensity.

PR — R =R A HE

Emissions — Waste Management —
Hazardous Waste Management
PR —BEEYMER —BEEE
mER

Emissions — Waste Management —
Non-hazardous Waste Management

BAREDIEIR A4 FESREFEZEMHEE (UEAE) REE - PR —BEEYERE —BEREE
MEIR
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to  Emissions
achieve them.
AR BIEIR AT W PAET IR BEME B R R AEDE L BEAREIE B

KPIAT.6

R AR IR AT

g o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
HlERIB A EREEEEYN A - R PIET A
R B R R R E DS e B RTS8

Emissions — Waste Management

B — EEMEE
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RIE - HERERKRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

=z3|#)

General Disclosures and KPIs Description

IR EH-

—REERBREMER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBmA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—RIE
KPI A2.1

RS IRIZ A2
KPI A2.2

RASR AR IEIZEA22
KPI A2.3

RS A IR 1R A23

KPIA2.4

AR WIEIE A2 4

KPI'A2.5

RS AE AR AR A25

=

i

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
BRERER(BIEER « KREMEME) BB -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
and intensity.

RERESNEER LHEERAEERTE °

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BREKERTE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

H AR LR A= B R R R EREERIEMR
REREY P8R o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

K EGE AR E A B EMERE - A RFTET AL H A
KW e B R R AERE L BRI LR -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and with reference to per unit produced.

HXmRAEEMHNEE(AE) REEEEM
HE o

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEA3 :: RERXAER

General Disclosure
— e HEE

KPI'A3.1

RG4S IRIZ A3

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources.
REREBITAHRERRABEREKERNZZNIK
% o

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

M EBHIRBRANERNEAZEREHME R
BHEXENTH -
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 AERERREREIAR

[ NE TR ARIE ]R3 (E)

Sections/Remarks

8

Use of Resources

BIRER

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption
BIRER — e

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BIREER — FK

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BIRER — FX

Use of Resources — Packaging
Materials (not applicable and
explained)
BRER —BEMB(TERY
B )

The Environment and Natural
Resources
IRIBRARANEIR

The Environment and Natural
Resources

RENMAAER
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

7B 155

General Disclosures and KPIs Description

FRER - EFH-
—REEREARERER

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[BE A4 - RIREL

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI'A4.1

RA 48 U 1R A4

Aspect B1: Employment
[BEB1 : ElE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPIB1.1

RA B A IR 1R B

KPIB1.2

RA S AE IR 1R B

i

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
BATEHEERAREHBETAEETENEAR
1RAERE = HHIBR o

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

B R R HBETAELETENEARIKIEH
F=H - REHTH -

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BRFM R EE  BRELET  TIERE - RE - F
EHe  Zlt REBAREMFBERBNAE

@ BE: R

(b) ETHETABEAZENHEBERZRARA
A o

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.
MR- ERER (MEBRE)  Ficds &R
ElDMES B -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIER - FEAR MRS D HEEIRKE o

HERER

HE

AR, e NRERKREIEFIRNE
=3l #®)
[ REFRHARE | KL (&)

Sections/Remarks

B EE

Climate Change

TR,

Climate Change — Physical Risks;
Climate Change — Transition Risks

[EE(E — BERAK  [IEE(
— ER A

Employment

&=

Employment — The Group's
Workforce

Bl —AEENBETAR
Employment — Retaining Talents

BRE —BBAS
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RIE - HERERKRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

=z3|#)

General Disclosures and KPIs Description

FRER EH-
—REERBEREMER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EHEB2: REHEZ2

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B2.1

FASAE IR 1R B2
KPI B2.2
FASAE N IE 1R B2.2
KPI B2.3

RAS AR IR 1R B2.3

=

18

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BRRHZ2TEREMREREERXBENREN

@ BEX: K
(b)) BFHBEITABEATENMABEZRRBRH
VB R} o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each
of the past three years including the reporting year.
BE=F(BEERFE)BFAT TR ABKLLE -
Lost days due to work injury.

ETIBEARTIEEE -

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
Fa At PTER AN BV BB SR fEFR B 22 246 1t - DA RABRBABNTT 2
BEmAE -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EEB3 : BREKXIEI

General Disclosure
—RR IR

KPIB3.1

FASAE IR 1R B3]
KPI B3.2

RAS AR IR 1R B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRARAERERIT TIERBE N B R REENBUR - 8
SREEHIES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

RUEFREERMN(NERERE  HPREEE)ED
WXIMEEBDL °

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
RURIREERERE D BREE KX TR
e
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 AERERREREIAR

[ NE TR ARIE ]R3 (E)

Sections/Remarks

i

Health, Safety and Security

E 22 RRE

Health, Safety and Security

R - & RIRE
Health, Safety and Security
R - &2 RIRE
Health, Safety and Security

B - Z2RIRE

Development and Training

TR MIE

Development and Training — Talent
Management

TR RSN — AT EE

Development and Training — Talent
Management

TR RSN — AT EE
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RIB g RERKRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs
TEHE - EH-
—RIEEREARERIER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

fBEB4 : 5T %8|
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B4.1

FAS AR KI5 1R B4
KPI B4.2

RASR AR IR 1R B4.2

=F3l®)

Description

i

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B EETSARHIBIH

@ BE: K

b) EFHBITABEAZENEBEEZRAS

B E R

Description of measures to review employment practices to

avoid child and forced labour.

R B E B AR R E T REHILT -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered.

ft R IR E RIS L ERR A BB AT ERER Y P8

BIXXPRIRIR. A RERREEIIAS

[ NE TR ARIE ] RS (E)

Sections/Remarks

B EE

Labour Standards

& TR

Labour Standards

2 T 28
Labour Standards
BT |

==
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RIE - HERERKRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs
FTEHE - EEH -
—MRIFERERERIER

=z3|#)

Description

1

=

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

ETEBS5 : LEHESIE

General Disclosure

—RIE
KPI B5.1

A48 AR 1R BS.1

KPIB5.2

RAS 48 AR 1R B5.2

KPIB5.3

RS AE A5 1R B5.3

KPI B5.4

RS AR ISR BS 4

96 Annual Report %5 2021/22

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

EEMERNRE R SRRBUR

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

i mE| D EREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

A RAEE B ERaES - M ERITAEBEREH
FERIEE - A NRAEBMITRERE AL -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
ARSI E R e ERSH R L g RERIE
Bl ARMBERITRERTE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

M EREHERRKEESZ BRREMMRBEHIE
Bl ARMBERITRERTE -

Bt 3SCPRIRIR

 AERERREREIAR

[ NE TR ARIE ]R3 (E)

Sections/Remarks

8

Supply Chain Management

HEEEERE

Supply Chain Management —
Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers
HERERE — EERAENHE
&

Supply Chain Management —
Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers

HEREE — EERAENHE
&

Supply Chain Management —
Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers

HERERE — EERAENHE
&

Supply Chain Management —
Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers

HERERE — EERAENHE
[
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RIB g RERKRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF EiZXFRIBIE. 42 RELHL5IEI RS
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued) LN )

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued) [ FESTRREE | (&)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Sections/Remarks
TEHE - EFE -
—REBERERENEE M BE B

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: Service Quality
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

—MRIKEE ERFMEHESEBRENERERS  BS 28k REEE
FLEEEARMROTER
@ B R
b) BETHETABEAZENHEBERNARA
BV E R o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to  Service Quality — Quality Assurance
recalls for safety and health reasons. and Customer Satisfaction (not
applicable and explained)
RS AE BIE1E BT EEYUCEXEMEETRL2ERFEAMARK RELEE - BERERTFPRE
WAL ° E(TERYERE)
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints  Service Quality — Quality Assurance
received and how they are dealt with. and Customer Satisfaction
R4 RIE1R B6.2 BEMNEmMRGORFEE N RELH X - RBEE —BEREREFWE
E
KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting  Service Quality — Intellectual
intellectual property rights. Property Rights
RASRAE IEIR B6.3 it B e 8 T AR RS EE R A V1B D o RIS & — Ak ERE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall  Service Quality — Quality Assurance
procedures. and Customer Satisfaction
SR AEIEIR Bo 4 S S8 TE B RE R Em BT - fREEE —BEERERETFPWE
i3
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Service Quality — Customer Privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored. and Data
RASRAE IEIR B6.S HIUEBEERRERLBEE  UREBRITRE BREEE —FPLERER
BIE »
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Rk dE2RERHS

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF F#3SFRIRIE.

HAERELAREEIAE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued) 5| (#)

“Comply or explain” Provision (Continued) [ REFRAR | KL (&)
Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Sections/Remarks
TEHE - EFE -

—REERARENER A 55 fHE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPIB7.1

RS AE IR 1R B7.]
KPI B7.2

PR A RIS B 2
KPIB7.3

RAS AR IR 1R B3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAD LR - $IR - BRF RO RER ¢

@ BEX: K
(b)) BFHBEITABEATENMABEZENBRH
VB R} o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
BAE#&H’ﬂ%ﬁ*ﬁ}\‘REﬁ,ﬁmﬁlaﬁmE’Jaﬁuﬁ A
RO E MFRER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
ot B S5 S ER AR T - DA RABRARIT REE SR T ©
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.

i mEERE TIRHNHREFE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : HEBRE

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI BS.1
FAS AR KI5 1R B8 ]
KPI BS.2

RASAE 515 B2

o8 Annual Report %5 2021/22

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

BANG R 2 MR REEMEMEREMBREE
BIEEE E EALE A=A BUR o

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
ErEREE(NHE  REEE BIEHR - BF -
Xk - 885) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EREIBREMPAER(NEEKER) -

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

R&3

Anti-corruption — Whistle-blowing
Policy

REE — RBBHK

Anti-corruption

RES

Community Investment

HRRE
Community Investment
HERIRE
Community Investment

HERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{85H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT
CORPORATION

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International
Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 107 to 234, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

BYZHBARES

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
&
TFERER 11157

KR H>251E

HEFIREBRATFIIAR

(REESHBIMA L HERAA])

2R

RIZ AT B BX 55 107 B 234 B A&l A B BRR 1R 4
BRAR(ERAA D RENBAR(FE EEE])
MZEMBHRE P BERREER ===
NAZTRAZEAVBRIKREEEZALEFE
WA E2ERER KAESEHRNEEEE
REX  BRESVHEHRERMTE  BEEASH
BRBE -

BMRE  GEAVEHRERERERSSTMAE
([EBEHMAT ) BHN(EBTHHREER])
BEEMTRSRET BEEER-_ZT=-__F,<A
ZTAZEEFBRR  MBEEZALEFEZE
AUBRRAREGEERERE  WEREEB(AR]
GO REERZEHRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of the non-current assets

We identified the impairment assessment in relation to the non-current
assets located in the Republic of the Philippines (the “Philippines”)
allocated to the cash generating unit of hotel operations (the “Hotel CGU")
as a key audit matter because of the significant judgements and estimates
involved in management’s assessment process. The Group has gross
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of HK$173,300,000 and
right-of-use assets of HK$21,818,000 respectively relating to the Hotel CGU,
which are significant operating assets of the Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the management assesses if there are
any indicators of potential impairment of the assets relating to the Hotel
CGU. If any impairment indicator exists, the management assesses the
recoverable amount of the Hotel CGU with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer not connected to the
Group (the “Valuer”) by income capitalisation approach. As disclosed in
Notes 14 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements, the management
has concluded that there is no additional provision nor reversal of
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
recognised in the profit or loss for the year.
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BRZER
BIERBEB B S ASRM(EEETER)
([EBFTER])ETER - PP AT LK
EMREEARE [RBEEZGR A M BRER
AENEE] BoPE— B - REFHE S
AENBEemEET (TSR] - BB
R BE&E YEETTAHFNEMERET-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of the non-current assets (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
the Hotel CGU included:

Discussing the impairment indicators of the Hotel CGU with the
management and inspecting the operating results and cash flow
forecast of the Group's hotel operation segment;

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted in the
valuation, such as the discount rate, capitalisation rate, average
occupancy rate and average daily room rate, by comparing them
with the historical operating performances of the Group’s hotel
operation segment, and available market data.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

We have identified the fair value measurement of investment properties
located in the Philippines as a key audit matter due to the significant
management judgements and estimates adopted in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties.

As disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements,
management estimated the fair value of investment properties at
approximately HK$993,000,000 as at 30 June 2022, with a fair value loss of
approximately HK$120,731,000 recognised in the profit or loss for the year.

Independent external valuations were obtained in respect of the
investment properties in order to support the management’s estimation of
fair value. The valuation is dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgements including rental income from
future lease period and capitalisation rate in light of the current market
condition.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s fair value measurement of
investment properties included:

Discussing with management and Valuer about the cash flow
projections used in the income approach calculation and assessing
the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and critical
judgement areas which affect the income approach calculation;

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions, such as
discount rate and capitalisation rate based on our knowledge of the
business and the industry, in particular those relating to the cash
flow projection used by the income approach for the fair value
measurement.

Contingencies in relation to the tax disputes with the Bureau
of Internal Revenue in the Philippines (the “BIR")

We identified the assessment of the contingencies in relation to the tax
disputes with the BIR as a key audit matter due to significant management
judgements involved in assessing the probability of settling the amount of
the potential tax disputes of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

As disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the
potential additional tax liabilities of the Group from the tax disputes with
BIR for calendar years of 2008, 2012, 2014, 2015 and 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$914,700,000 in aggregate as at 30 June 2022.
Subsequently, as disclosed in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, approximately HK$60,800,000 bank balances of the Group has
been garnished by BIR in relation to tax dispute for calendar year of 2015.
The uncertainties related to the ultimate outcome and the details of the
tax disputes with the BIR are set out in Notes 4, 11 and 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Contingent liabilities in relation to the tax disputes with the
Bureau of Internal Revenue in the Philippines (the “BIR")
(Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to evaluation of the contingencies in relation to
the tax disputes with the BIR and the sufficiency of the relevant disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements included:

Obtaining and reviewing all relevant documents and
correspondences in relation to the tax disputes between the Group
and the BIR;

Evaluated the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the tax
and legal advisors and obtaining an understanding of their scope of
work and their terms of engagements;

Inspecting the written advices issued by the independent tax and
legal advisers of the Group to assess the appropriateness of the
management’s basis in determining the amount of contingent
liabilities and the basis in evaluating the outcome of the tax disputes;

Enquiring and challenging the basis of written advices of
independent tax and legal advisors of the Group to understand their
assessment of the tax disputes; and

Considering the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements as required by relevant HKFRSs.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate number P05309

Hong Kong, 30 September 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE_T - —FNA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE HE
—=E-= =g ==
NA=1+H NA=1H
IEFE 1EFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtaF F#ExT FAT
Revenue WA 5(b) 85,525 64,900
Cost of sales SHER A (63,573) (60,378)
Gross profit EF 21,952 4,522
Other income EH A A 6 4,641 14,802
Other losses, net HAth g8 558 7 (17,968) (3.192)
Change in fair value of financial assets at BRATFEFANEBERZ EREE
fair value through profit or loss NEEE 19 (40,949) (46,545)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities at BRATEGFABR eRARE
fair value through profit or loss N EED) 30 3,176 5,104
Change in fair value of investment properties &Y% A FEEH) 15 (120,731) (111,939)
Gain on modification of promissory notes 1B R BB 2 W 28 - 1,945
Impairment loss of property, plant and Wz - B R EEREEE
equipment 14 - (24,797)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FREEEREEE 18 - (3,728)
Share of loss of associates DR E A AEE 17 (6,445) (789)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE RS ER X (65) (18)
General and administrative expenses —RITHAXZ (77,259) (78,812)
Finance costs MER 8 (29,510) (29,347)
Loss before taxation BRTRIE R 9 (263,158) (272,794)
Income tax credit ST % 1 6,767 30,754
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SEZHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE—T - —FNA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE HE
—ZE=-= S
NA=1+H NE=ETE
LtHEE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
KteF FET T
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of A BIHEA A JE(EFEREIE
the Company (256,391) (242,040)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will BT EEFH D IEEIER 2 HEiM
not be reclassified to profit or loss: 2m|(&E8), M -
— Remeasurement of defined benefit — BN ERATEMNEME
obligations 517 (179)
— Exchange differences arising on — BB L2 EEEEL 2
translation of presentation currency EHER (139,837) 45,348
Total comprehensive loss for the year RAGHEA AEBIEFEA
attributable to the owners of the Company FHBEBRE (395,711) (196,871)
HK Cents HK Cents
A4l AL
Loss per share attributable to owners of RARHEE AEEEREE
the Company
Basic R 13 (18.73) (17.68)
Diluted e 13 (18.73) (17.68)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

At 30 June 2022

R-FE-——F.A=+H

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
—=-= =ER = 4=
ANB=+H s i =
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
HfaF T FHIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMENE E
Property, plant and equipment M - MR KEE 14 162,453 223,330
Investment properties WEMZE 15 993,000 1,231,000
Loan receivables U E X 16 63,967 77,203
Interest in associates i N o 17 43,917 55,686
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 31,442 37,735
Other receivables, deposits and HmEWIE - ek
prepayments TEfFRIE 21 15,351 16,995
1,310,130 1,641,949
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 1,242 1,403
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEGFABREZ
profit or loss EREE 19 8,212 52,573
Trade receivables FEURBRTE 20 12,981 4347
Contract assets BHEE 22(a) 224 2,232
Other receivables, deposits and Hib e FIE - 128 %
prepayments TEFRIE 21 28,966 30,433
Amounts due from associates JE U Bt & N R FRIB 917 3,275
Bank balances and cash WITEGFERRS 33(a) 512,104 564,942
564,646 659,205
Total assets BERE 1,874,776 2,301,154
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables FEfTER IR 23 2,088 1,779
Other payables and accrued charges Hip e IE N ERT B H 23 30,319 29,863
Promissory notes R 28 400,300 382,196
Contract liabilities BHEE 22(b) 184 19
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 31,216 19,887
Lease liabilities HEARE 18 3,501 2,469
467,608 436,213
Net current assets mEVEEFAE 97,038 222,992

Annual Report #£2021/22 109



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

At 30 June 2022
RZFE-=—FAA=+H

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
—=E=-= =ER ===
ANA=t+H NASTE
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
HfaF F#&x T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIERE 24 131,829 152,255
Other liabilities HithB & 890 999
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 35,553 42394
Bank borrowings RITERE 29 = 34,803
Convertible bond AR ES 30 42,998 42,381
211,270 273,332
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,195,898 1,591,609
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7N A FI#EA A JEERE RS
Share capital A&z 26 1,369,157 1,369,157
Share premium and reserves R (8 K (173,259) 222,452
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,195,898 1,591,609

The financial statements on pages 107 to 234 were approved by the Board H W E 1072234 B 2 BREE R _ZE_—F 1,

of Directors on 30 September 2022 and were signed on its behalf by: A=THEZZ=eitE THINIEEAREE
Mr. HO Wong Meng Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE
HO Wong Meng 5t 4 Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE £ 4
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE Ex

110 Annual Report 5 2021/22



International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR R A

Consolidated Statement of Changes i in Equity

mEREmSER

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE—T - —FNA=FHIUFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAEL
Share-based
Share Share Merger Other Exchange  compensation Retained

capital premium reserve reserves reserves reserve profits Total

NRHAER
A& R EE At HifE ERfifE 2WERG REEF ag
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000
TEL AL AL TAL AL TAL AL TAL

(Notea) (Noteb) (Notec)

(Hi#a) (Hisn) (W)

At1July 2020 —Z-ZF+A-A 1369157 170,289 53022 (112,683) 3773) 5433 540,985 1,788480

Loss forthe year FRER - - = = = = (242040) (242040)

Remeasurement of defined benefitobligations ~ E#3t 8 RERAIFIE = = - - - - (179) (179)

Echange differences arising on translationof B ARSI EMEEL 7

presentation currency BHEE - - - - 45348 - = 45348

Total comprehensive loss for the year ERRABRARE - - - - 45348 - (242219 (196871)

At30 June 2021 W=ZE--%5xA=1H 1369157 170,289 53022 (112,683) (192375) 5433 298,766 1,591,609

Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (256,391) (256,391)

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations ~ EFFHERERFEL - - - - - - 517 517

Exchange differences arising on translation of BERSTERRELL

presentation currency ERZER - - - - (139,837) - - (139,837)

Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EFRELE - - - - (139,837) - (255,874) (395,711)

At 30 June 2022 RZE-—#XA=1H 1,369,157 170,289 53,022 (112,683) (332,212) 5,433 42,892 1,195,898

(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the share capital () REBAFHEBIEEIBEBGEHEAR AR (ERHE
and share premium of Cyber On-Air Multimedia Limited whose shares were ARaRH ) 2 BARB D REERNDRIRES
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of share capital BEMAMETRAEEMERZE5 - SIIGSHE
issued by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation. Cyber On-Air BERARERBE_TSTENF=A=+—HLFE
Multimedia Limited was disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2008. HE -

(b)  The other reserves represent net effect of discount on acquisition of subsidiaries  (b) HEtwREEEREE_EENF=ZA=+T—"HBEK=ZF
and premium on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries from a subsidiary —+tF=ZA=t—BHIFESNAERFNETARZ
of the then intermediate parent arising during the year ended 31 March 2008 and —XMBRARWENBRARELEZITERKEHER
31 March 2017 respectively. RIFEIMEREECREBIFHE -

() Share-based compensation reserve comprises the value of the unexercised share  (c) AR BERE 2 EREE \L%@FWE\E 317 BLUARR 9

option granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 3.17.

RERN FARA
TTEEREZ EE

BRTBEBERZ AR AR ZHR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHTRER

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE—T - —FNA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE HE
-2 —E-—4F
NA=t1H SSAZETE
LtHEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERE
Loss before taxation PR 7% Al B 18 (263,158) (272,794)
Adjustments for: B TRTIIE B EH T -
Interest income FLEMA (4,038) (4,349)
Interest expenses FERAXZ 29,510 2347
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts for JEUNBR I8 & E b fE W IE 2
trade and other receivables, net RIBERBEFEE 1,735 2,752
Change in fair value of financial assets at BATET ARG Z
fair value through profit or loss TREEATEZE 40,949 46,545
Change in fair value of financial liabilities at BRAFEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss CRAEATEES (3,176) (5104)
Change in fair value of investment properties HEYENTESR 120,731 111,939
Gain on modification of promissory notes &R H 248 2 W E - (1,945)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment  #1% - /& & BRI EEE - 24,797
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FRAEEERERE - 3,728
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment VI~ BB KRBT E 45,039 48461
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERTE 4,645 5,382
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% - E &&REZ BB - 3,662
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets and PEFAREEREESR
lease liabilities 2 Was - (108)
Share of loss of associates DIGEE A REE 6,445 789
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) fE H &8, (W) 588 17,968 (362)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE—T - A=1THIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE HE
-2 —EB-—F
~NAE=1+H NA=+H
IEFE 1EFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ExT AT
Operating cash flows before movements in KT B IEE BRI 2 ARE
working capital ReEmnE (3,350) (7,260)
Decrease in inventories FERL 18 482
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEUTBRIE (3E0) R A (9,865) 3,674
Decrease in other receivables, deposits and E b EINGIA « & MTBNFOE
prepayments R 6,120 9,197
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from associates [ 4Bt A I IE R A (38 hn) 2,192 (60)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTBRIEIE AN, (R ) 526 (1,859)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and Hih e RIB R ESTERE M
accrued charges OmA) 3,596 (13,931)
Cash used in operating activities AR EEE 2 e (763) (9,757)
Income taxes paid BEFSH - (56)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES RECEER) e F5R (763) (9,813)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Interest received B HFILE 3,177 1,483
Additions to property, plant and equipment NEVE  BMENEE (3,625) (11,332)
Proceeds received on disposal of property, plant ~ HEW¥ - WMERERE DK
and equipment PTG RIE = 205
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZRATFEFABREZ
at fair value through profit and loss SRMEEFAEHIE 718 =
Repayments of loan receivable from an associate B4 N {88 FEIE X 5,645 =
Increase in deposits for property, plant and ME - BE NRERS LM
equipment (228) (4,035)
Additions to investment properties NBIREE (1,837) (1,835)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) Vi Q/()EHE/\\\) B EE IS EEE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 3,850 (15,514)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHTRER

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE—T - —FNA=1HIFE

B IR AR R A

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE H=
=== =EE = —tE
NA=1H ~NE=GFE
IEFE HFE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FET T T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE 33(b)
Interest paid BARFE (3,889) (5,757)
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEECENR (19,072) (20,039)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEABCEN (7,505) (8,362)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES IR BB BB 2 B & 858 (30,466) (34,158)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND Re kRS EEMR D FRR
CASH EQUIVALENTS (27,379) (59,485)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE &R v &
CHANGES (25,459) 1,257
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REVZREMREEEYD
BEGINNING OF YEAR 564,942 623,170
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REKRZAE MNREEEYD
END OF YEAR
represented by bank balances and cash RIRTT &7 RIB LR 33(a) 512,104 564,942
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong are disclosed in “Corporate Information” section to this
annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were principally involved in
hotel operations, leasing of properties equipped with entertainment
equipment at the hotel complex of the Group in Metro Manila in the
Republic of the Philippines (the “Philippines”) to Philippine
Amusement and Gaming Corporation (“PAGCOR") and participation
in the gaming operation (the “Hotel Operation Business” and
“Gaming Operation Business’) and live poker events (the “Live
Events Business”’) in Macau. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 34.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to COVID-19 Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

The directors are of the opinion that none of these new or
amended HKFRSs has a material impact on the Group's results
and financial position for the current or prior period.

A MR M

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE_T - —FNA=1HIFE

—h%EIR

BERREERAR((FAT]) RRHASES
AWM BRAR  ERONEEHAER
PAARAR ((BWXFF])ERLET - ARF
AR SRR N BB B R A 2 AR
FHIAREM] RRKE -

RRBARELRRAR - AR REKEBA
RSB IEAEEDFEXBR/BELE -
[l Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation ([PAGCOR]) H fE R JEEE 1
B ([ERE]) FRuHe R AEEEELR
BHEEANRBREXB 2 MET2HBEL S
B(BEEEEXK | M BEEEXK ) A
RRRFGRERSER RS ([REFTHE
®l) EMBAR EFEXBEHIINMT
34 ¢

RIMEBMIBRE LR ((FEHH

wREER)

(a) ERAHET BT BEBUBEREE
Ll

BEQHERNE 9% FlREEYE
EANBREENSE4E .  —EBR
BEMBRELNE TS
BB REEAEIRR
BEIHREENE 165
(B34

EAMBREENSE 6% R -—F
(BETR) ~NA=tRE

COVID-19EM £
&

ESRB - REHANEETEEY
5 ¥R &5 2 A3 R B AN SR B R HA R 08
EHENREMMBRARELEAT
.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE—T - —FNA=1HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potenti